
 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

AGENDA 
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Village Hall – Board Room 
Monday, December 9, 2019 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Reasonable accommodations/auxiliary aids will be provided to enable persons with 
disabilities to effectively participate in any public meetings of the Board.  Please contact the 

Village Administrative Office (847.883.8600) 48 hours in advance if you need special 
accommodations to attend.  Regular Village Board Meetings will not proceed past 10:30 

p.m. unless there is a consensus of the majority of the Trustees to do so. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS           
 3.1 Mayor’s Report   
 3.2 Village Clerk’s Report 
 3.3   Village Treasurer's Report  
 3.4 Village Manager's Report  
 
4.0   PAYMENT OF BILLS 

4.1   Bills Presented for Payment on December 9, 2019 in the amount of 
$136,216.66 

 
5.0  CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD (on agenda items only) 
6.0  PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
    
7.0  CONSENT AGENDA 

Items on the Consent Agenda will be approved by one motion. If a Trustee wishes to 
discuss any item, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed under 
“Unfinished Business”.  
 
7.1 Approval of November 25, 2019 Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes  
 
7.2 Approval of November 25, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes 
 
7.3 Approval of an Ordinance Granting a Special Use and Variances for a Public 

School – Daniel Wright Junior High School (Lincolnshire-Prairie View School 
District 103) 

 
7.4 Approval of an Internal Village Fee Waiver not to Exceed $4,264.33 

(Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103) 
 

7.5 Approval of an Ordinance Amending the Lincolnshire Village Code, Title 6 
(Zoning), Chapters 2 (Zoning Definitions), 3 (General Zoning Regulations), 

            
    
  

 



Page 2 
AGENDA - Regular Village Board Meeting  
December 9, 2019 
 

and 8 (Office/Industrial Districts), Defining and Prohibiting Adult-Use 
Cannabis Business Establishments (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.6 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Title 11 (Misdemeanors), Chapter 10 

(Offenses Affecting Public Health and Safety) of the Lincolnshire Village Code 
Pertaining to Recreational Cannabis (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.7 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Title 11 (Misdemeanors), Chapter 12 

(Minors) of the Lincolnshire Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 
7.8 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Title 3 (Business License Regulations), 

Chapter 4 (Amusements), Article G (Raffles) of the Lincolnshire Village Code 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.9 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Title 4 (Health and Sanitation), Chapter 4 

(Smoking Regulations), of the Lincolnshire Village Code Pertaining to Smoking 
on School Grounds (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.10 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Title 1 (Administration), Chapter 17 

(Comprehensive Fine/Penalty Schedule), Section 12 (Misdemeanors) of the 
Lincolnshire Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 

8.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
8.1 Planning, Zoning & Land Use 
8.2 Finance and Administration 

 
8.3 Public Works 
 8.31 Consideration of Approval of a Professional Service Contract with 

Baxter & Woodman Consulting Engineers for 2020 Roadway and 
Parking Lot Rehabilitation, Design, Permits, and Bidding Services at a 
Cost not to Exceed $77,166.27 (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
8.32 Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Christopher B. Burke 

Engineering, Ltd. for Roadway Improvement Analysis, Design, Permits, 
and Bidding Services at a Cost not to Exceed $47,650.00 (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
8.33 Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Kluber Architects & 

Engineers for Flooring, Tuckpointing, and Security Improvements 
Design, Bidding, and Construction Administration Services at a Cost 
not to Exceed $23,750.00 (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 8.34 Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Hitchcock Design 

Group of Naperville, Illinois for Preliminary Design for Proposed 
Signage Improvements at a Cost not Exceed $40,000.00 (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 
  

8.4 Police 
8.5 Parks and Recreation 
8.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

  
9.0  REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 
10.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS 
12.0 ADJOURNMENT 



Agenda Item
4.1

Column1 Column2
General Fund 102,295.12$              
Water & Sewer Fund 12,225.18$                
Motor Fuel Tax
Water & Sewer Improvement Fund
Fraud, Alcohol, Drug Enforcement
Vehicle Maintenance Fund 6,496.36$                  
Park Development Fund
Sedgebrook SSA 6,000.00$                  
General Capital Fund 9,200.00$                  

GRAND TOTAL 136,216.66$              

                           ________________________________

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE

BILLS PRESENTED FOR PAYMENT
12/09/2019

Brad Burke, Village Manager

V:\Finance\Dept\Accounts Payable\Prelist_APBankTrf.xlsx



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 1/4Page:12/05/2019 11:25 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 11/26/2019 - 12/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER

VENDOR NAME: AMERICAN UNDERGROUND INC.
3,400.00Sanitary Cleaning & Removal - Angelican 9041

3,400.00TOTAL VENDOR AMERICAN UNDERGROUND INC.

VENDOR NAME: APPLE JANIS
76.68Senior Citizen Property Tx Relief Refund2018

76.68TOTAL VENDOR APPLE JANIS

VENDOR NAME: APRIL NEUMANN
63.40UB refund for account: 0202290068-01ov12092019

63.40TOTAL VENDOR APRIL NEUMANN

VENDOR NAME: B & F CONSTRUCTION CODE SERVICES
1,789.02Plan Review_160 Old Mill Road_SF Dwelli52679

1,789.02TOTAL VENDOR B & F CONSTRUCTION CODE SE

VENDOR NAME: CDW COMPUTER CENTERS
804.36Adobe Pro - Gabbard/MaciareilloVWJ6282

804.36TOTAL VENDOR CDW COMPUTER CENTERS

VENDOR NAME: CHAD LUECK
742.50UB refund for account 0304820310-02 ov12092019a

742.50TOTAL VENDOR CHAD LUECK

VENDOR NAME: CINTAS CORPORATION #47P
104.08Weekly Uniform Rental - Public Works4035598297

104.08TOTAL VENDOR CINTAS CORPORATION #47P

VENDOR NAME: COMCAST CABLE
24.00Nov_Dec 2019_PW Internet_Acct#87111Dec 2019_#11389

24.00TOTAL VENDOR COMCAST CABLE

VENDOR NAME: CONRAD POLYGRAPH, INC
347.50Polygraph for police candidates Saad, Chl3715

347.50TOTAL VENDOR CONRAD POLYGRAPH, INC

VENDOR NAME: ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC.
2,985.00Janitorial Services 11-1-19 to 11-30-198327

2,985.00TOTAL VENDOR ECO CLEAN MAINTENANCE, INC.

VENDOR NAME: ERIN RICE DESIGN
4,950.00Phase 2 Lincolnshire Logo-Brand_Identity 12_03_2019

4,950.00TOTAL VENDOR ERIN RICE DESIGN

VENDOR NAME: GILBERTSON BEN
181.072019 IPELRA_Mileage, Toll and Meal Reim2019IPELRA

181.07TOTAL VENDOR GILBERTSON BEN

VENDOR NAME: GRAINGER, INC.
199.08Yellow Rubber Overshoe Boots  (6 Pairs)9361794606

199.08TOTAL VENDOR GRAINGER, INC.

VENDOR NAME: GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING
750.00Tree Removals/Stump Grinding2019-5203

17,754.00October Landscape Maintenance2019-5562
650.00Landscape Maintenance - Creekside Park2019-5563



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 2/4Page:12/05/2019 11:25 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 11/26/2019 - 12/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER

VENDOR NAME: GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING
2,469.00Cul-De-Sac Maintenance - Brampton Wes2019-5565

980.00Landscape Trash Removal2019-5567
480.00Outside Services - 61 & 63 Lincolnshire D2019-5564
835.00Cul-De-Sac Maintenace - Whitby Court2019-5566

23,918.00TOTAL VENDOR GREEN ACRES LANDSCAPING

VENDOR NAME: IAFCI
80.002020 Annual Membership - Anderson4241120

80.00TOTAL VENDOR IAFCI

VENDOR NAME: ILACP
220.002020 Annual Membership -Leonas4851
57.00Training New Marijuana Law - Leonas5286

277.00TOTAL VENDOR ILACP

VENDOR NAME: ILLINOIS LEAP
40.002020 Annual Membership - MaciareilloLincolnshire 2020

40.00TOTAL VENDOR ILLINOIS LEAP

VENDOR NAME: IMRF
48,095.0611 2019 Member & Employer Contributio02609

48,095.06TOTAL VENDOR IMRF

VENDOR NAME: INTOXIMETERS
98.50Repair - Breathalyzer Machine643714

98.50TOTAL VENDOR INTOXIMETERS

VENDOR NAME: INVOICE CLOUD
55.7512 2019 Paperless Utility Bills1185-2019_11

55.75TOTAL VENDOR INVOICE CLOUD

VENDOR NAME: IRC RETAIL CENTERS
2,942.01CAM Estimated Escrow Lease T0000888_12_2019

2,942.01TOTAL VENDOR IRC RETAIL CENTERS

VENDOR NAME: KNOWBE4 INC
510.30KnowBe4 Security Awareness Training-"Di76101

510.30TOTAL VENDOR KNOWBE4 INC

VENDOR NAME: LAKE COUNTY CHIEFS O
230.002020 Annual Membership - Leonas400

230.00TOTAL VENDOR LAKE COUNTY CHIEFS O

VENDOR NAME: LAWSON PRODUCTS INC
475.72Misc. Shop Parts9307151252

475.72TOTAL VENDOR LAWSON PRODUCTS INC

VENDOR NAME: LEADSONLINE
1,758.002020 Investigative System Service Packa253144

1,758.00TOTAL VENDOR LEADSONLINE

VENDOR NAME: LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS
95.00Nov. 2019 Internet, Computer and Phone 1217074-2019113

95.00TOTAL VENDOR LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 3/4Page:12/05/2019 11:25 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 11/26/2019 - 12/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER

VENDOR NAME: LIBERTYVILLE CHEVROLET
92.34Squad 1621 Oil918233

3,994.10Truck 230 Transmission Replacement219095

4,086.44TOTAL VENDOR LIBERTYVILLE CHEVROLET

VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE RIVERWOODS FPD
319.00Plan Review_2 Marriott Drive_IRythm_P110685
319.00Plan Review_3 Overlook Pt_Zebra Technol10684

638.00TOTAL VENDOR LINCOLNSHIRE RIVERWOODS F

VENDOR NAME: LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY CASH
66.8212/09/19 Petty Cash Reimbursements12092019

66.82TOTAL VENDOR LINCOLNSHIRE VILLAGE-PETTY 

VENDOR NAME: LUND INDUSTRIES
384.95Replace Emergency Lighting Sq# 113195874

384.95TOTAL VENDOR LUND INDUSTRIES

VENDOR NAME: MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS CO, INC.
1,348.3712 2019 Life Insurance Premiums1370108

1,348.37TOTAL VENDOR MADISON NATIONAL LIFE INS C

VENDOR NAME: MICHAEL LASKOV
179.50Senior Citizen Property Tx Relief Refund2018

179.50TOTAL VENDOR MICHAEL LASKOV

VENDOR NAME: MICHAEL MERANDA JR.
120.0011/19/19 ARB Mtg.192211
120.0011/26/19 RVB/COW Mtg192911

240.00TOTAL VENDOR MICHAEL MERANDA JR.

VENDOR NAME: MQ PAINTING
9,200.00Painting - Exterior Village, Village Hall Em11202019

9,200.00TOTAL VENDOR MQ PAINTING

VENDOR NAME: MUNICAP INC.
6,000.002019 Annual Admin Fees112019-368

6,000.00TOTAL VENDOR MUNICAP INC.

VENDOR NAME: NEOPOST USA INC
38.00Supplies for Postage Machine15910980

38.00TOTAL VENDOR NEOPOST USA INC

VENDOR NAME: O'HERRON CO INC
82.20Uniform Shirts - Cutro1966183-IN

160.36Uniform Jacket - Anderson1964457-IN
55.99Uniform Belt - Temple1966676-IN
27.16Uniform hats - CSO1966931-IN

325.71TOTAL VENDOR O'HERRON CO INC

VENDOR NAME: PASQUESI HOME & GARD
289.77Village Hall Entrance Decorations027379/1

289.77TOTAL VENDOR PASQUESI HOME & GARD

VENDOR NAME: PAYLOCITY
207.2912/06/19 Pay Services105824320



CUSTOM INVOICE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 4/4Page:12/05/2019 11:25 AM
User: npanos
DB: Lincolnshire

INVOICE DUE DATES 11/26/2019 - 12/09/2019
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION
INVOICE
NUMBER

VENDOR NAME: PAYLOCITY
207.29TOTAL VENDOR PAYLOCITY

VENDOR NAME: PETERSON MICHAEL R.
1,225.00Peterson to IMTA Institute Registration, Tr2019 1209

1,225.00TOTAL VENDOR PETERSON MICHAEL R.

VENDOR NAME: POLICE EXEC RESEARCH
200.002020 Annual PERF Membership - Leonas2692

9,700.00Senior Management Training - Covelli201348647

9,900.00TOTAL VENDOR POLICE EXEC RESEARCH

VENDOR NAME: PRF GRAPHICS
76.251099-MISC forms and envelopes328362

76.25TOTAL VENDOR PRF GRAPHICS

VENDOR NAME: RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATES
1,400.402019 Recruitment - Police Officer Written 19128

1,400.40TOTAL VENDOR RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ASSO

VENDOR NAME: STO-COTE PRODUCTS INC.
1,785.24Ice Rink Liner for North Park106634

1,785.24TOTAL VENDOR STO-COTE PRODUCTS INC.

VENDOR NAME: THE STEVENS GROUP
3,120.002019 Winter Newsletter0078632

71.18S. Holst business cards0078636

3,191.18TOTAL VENDOR THE STEVENS GROUP

VENDOR NAME: UNIVERSITY OF ILLINO
50.00Pesticide Testing for Josh Biddinger 2-26-94729
65.00Pesticide Testing for Dave Clauser - 2-26-94727

115.00TOTAL VENDOR UNIVERSITY OF ILLINO

VENDOR NAME: UPS STORE
231.782019 Holiday Tree Lighting_Kiosk_Barrica24040_23941

231.78TOTAL VENDOR UPS STORE 

VENDOR NAME: VERIZON WIRELESS
237.2010/13 - 11/12/19 SCADA Data Plan Util9842035102

237.20TOTAL VENDOR VERIZON WIRELESS

VENDOR NAME: WASTE MANAGEMENT
487.50WM YW Stk #32786-32935, ID 1-40385-6739788-2008-6

487.50TOTAL VENDOR WASTE MANAGEMENT

VENDOR NAME: WE FIX-IT TIRE REPAIR
108.00Toro Tire Replacement1901

108.00TOTAL VENDOR WE FIX-IT TIRE REPAIR

VENDOR NAME: XEROX CORPORATION
57.00Nemo Base Charge (10/21/19 - 11/21/19098800367
85.00Police Base Charge (10/21/19 - 11/21/19098800368
70.23Meme Base & Usage Charge (10/21/19 - 098800369

212.23TOTAL VENDOR XEROX CORPORATION

136,216.66GRAND TOTAL:



 
 
 
 
 
O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
 7.1 

MINUTES 
REGULAR VILLAGE BOARD MEETING 

Monday, November 25, 2019 
Present: 
Mayor Brandt    Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac   Trustee Hancock  
Trustee Leider    Trustee Pantelis 
Trustee Raizin    Village Clerk Mastandrea 
Village Attorney Simon  Village Manager Burke 
Chief of Police Leonas  Public Works Director Woodbury 
Village Treasurer/Finance Director Peterson Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya  Economic Development Director Gilbertson 
 
1.0 ROLL CALL 

Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and Village Clerk Mastandrea 
called the Roll.  

 
2.0 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
     
3.0  REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

3.1   Mayor’s Report 
3.11  Holiday Tree Lighting 
  

Mayor Brandt noted the Holiday Tree Lighting is taking place at the 
Village Green on Friday, December 6 at 5:30 p.m. Toys for Tots will be 
taking donations at the event.   

 
3.2 Village Clerk’s Report – None 

 
3.3   Village Treasurer’s Report  

3.31 Revenues and Expenditures for the Month of October, 2019 
 
 Village Treasurer/Finance Director Peterson noted the Revenue and 

Expenditure Summary is included in the Board packet; and all revenues 
and expenditures have been properly recorded for the month of October 
2019. 

 
3.4 Village Manager’s Report  

3.41 Leaf Collection  
 
  Village Manager Burke stated final leaf pick-up for the area west of 

Riverwoods Road is underway for this week before they move to the east 
side of town. Staff is recommending all residents keep their leaves at the 
curb. The yard waste sticker collection will have their last pick-up 
December 11.  



Page 2 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
 

 
4.0   PAYMENT OF BILLS 

4.1   Bills Presented for Payment on November 25, 2019 in the amount of 
$502,456.30 

 
  Village Treasurer/Finance Director Peterson provided a summary of the 

November 25, 2019 bills prelist presented for payment with the total being 
$502,456.30. The total amount is based on $125,800 for General Fund; 
$123,200 for Water & Sewer Fund; $221,300 for Water & Sewer Improvement 
Fund; $5,700 for Vehicle Maintenance Fund; and $26,500 for General Capital 
Fund.  

 
  Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to 

approve the bills prelist dated November 25, 2019 as presented. The roll call vote 
was as follows:  

 
 AYES: Trustees Grujanac, Pantelis, Raizin, Hancock, and Harms Muth.  
 NAYS: None.  
 ABSENT: Trustee Leider.  
 ABSTAIN: None.  
 
 Mayor Brandt declared the motion carried.  
 

5.0  CITIZENS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD (on agenda items only) - None 
 
6.0  PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS - None 
 
7.0 CONSENT AGENDA  

7.1 Approval of November 11, 2019 Regular Village Board Meeting Minutes  
 
7.2 Approval of November 11, 2019 Committee of the Whole Meeting 

Minutes 
 

7.3 Approval of an Ordinance Rezoning the Property Commonly Known as 2 
Hotz Road from R1 Single-Family Resident to E Small Scale Office 
(Lincolnshire Animal Hospital – 420 Half Day Road) 

 
7.4 Approval of an Ordinance Granting an Amendment to a Special Use 

Granting Variations for an Animal Clinic (Lincolnshire Animal Hospital – 
420 Half Day Road) 

 
7.5 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Single-Family Residential Bulk 

Regulations in Title 6, Chapters 5A (R1, R2 and R3 Single-Family 
Residence Districts) and 5B (R2A Single-Family Residence District) of the 
Lincolnshire Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.6 Approval of the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 
7.7 Approval of Professional Service Agreements as Detailed in the Budget 

for Fiscal Year 2020 (Village of Lincolnshire) 
 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
 

Village Attorney Simon noted the Budget and Professional Service Agreements 
list have been made available for review and inspection since early October. 

 
7.8 Approval of an Ordinance Levying Taxes for Corporate Purposes of the 

Village of Lincolnshire, Lake County, Illinois for Fiscal Year Beginning the 
First Day of January, 2019 and ending December 31, 2019 (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
7.9 Approval of an Ordinance Abating and Reducing Certain Taxes Heretofore 

Levied to Pay Debt Service on Special Service Area (SSA) Bonds of the 
Village of Lincolnshire, Lake County, Illinois (Sedgebrook Special Service 
Area Number 1 Special Tax Bonds) 

 
7.10 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 15 of Title 1- 

Comprehensive Fee Schedule of the Lincolnshire Village Code Related to 
the Establishment of Fees and Charges for Service (Water and Sewer 
Connection Charges and Rate)  (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.11 Approval of Changes to Police Pension Funding Policy (Village of 

Lincolnshire) 
 
7.12 Approval of the 2020 Calendar and Meeting Schedule (Village of 

Lincolnshire)  
 

7.13 Approval of a Joint Purchasing Agreement with Morton Salt, Inc. in the 
Not-to-Exceed-Amount of $33,325.00, and Compass Minerals America, 
Inc. in the Not-to-Exceed Amount of $28,611.00, for the Purchase of 
Rock Salt for the 2019-2020 Winter Season (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
7.14 Approval of a One-Year Supplemental Statement of Work with 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Consortium Service Provider, 
Municipal GIS Partners (MGP) for Geographic Information Services 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
Trustee Harms Muth requested Item 7.5 be pulled from the consent agenda to be 
discussed under Items of General Business 

 
 Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Hancock seconded the motion to approve 

the Consent Agenda with Item 7.5 pulled. The roll call vote was as follows:  
 

AYES: Trustees Grujanac, Pantelis, Raizin, Hancock, and Harms Muth.  
NAYS: None.   
ABSENT: Trustee Leider.  
ABSTAIN: None.  
 
Mayor Brandt declared the motion carried. 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
 
 
8.0  ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 

8.1 Planning, Zoning & Land Use 
 7.5 Approval of an Ordinance Amending Single-Family Residential Bulk 

Regulations in Title 6, Chapters 5A (R1, R2 and R3 Single-Family 
Residence Districts) and 5B (R2A Single-Family Residence District) 
of the Lincolnshire Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
  Assistant Village Manage/Community & Economic Development (CED) 

Director Gilbertson noted this agenda item was presented at the last 
Committee of the Whole meeting and stated he would be happy to answer 
any questions the Board may have.  

 
  Trustee Harms Muth noted she was unsure what the Board is trying to 

solve with the proposed Ordinance and expressed her opinion she did not 
think the proposed text amendments solve the alleged issues, nor have the 
issues been clearly articulated. Trustee Harms Muth stated Assistant Village 
Manager/CED Director Gilbertson recently sent an email listing homes on 
the brink of non-conformance, and her home was on the list. Trustee 
Harms Muth noted she understands the Board does not want massive 
houses on small parcels of land, but does not believe this is a current 
problem and stated these regulations would impact any future 
projects/additions for current property homeowners.  

 
  Trustee Raizin stated she was concerned about passing a stricter ordinance 

that would place current houses in non-compliance. Trustee Raizin stated 
she is interested in hearing what the Zoning Board has to say regarding the 
proposed changes.       

 
  Trustee Hancock stated he is interested in hearing from the Zoning Board 

and noted he did not think a Village that permits scenarios for 10,000 and 
20,000 square-foot homes to be built beside existing homeowners with 
smaller homes is the correct approach. Trustee Hancock stated his opinion 
is the proposed changes would be for future development, not to affect 
existing homes, and that homeowners could petition the Village Board for 
exceptions.  

 
  Village Attorney Simon noted if someone is already up against the 

proposed floor area ratio (FAR) and/or square footage cap and applies for a 
variance, one of the findings of fact the Zoning Board must approve is that 
the variance presents a hardship to the property owner. Without pre-
judging an application, Village Attorney Simon stated he imagined it would 
be difficult for property owners to demonstrate this particular hardship.  

 
  A conversation regarding zoning districts for larger homes followed.  
 
  Trustee Grujanac stated she is not concerned about the existing houses 

that would become non-conforming and believes the Board can figure out 
something to do for those. Trustee Grujanac noted she has heard from 
residents who feel the character of their neighborhoods is being impacted 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
 

by the larger homes. Trustee Grujanac stated she would like to see the 
changes approved based on the more restrictive numbers.  

 
  Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson noted this is just one of 

the tools to regulate residential bulk. 
 
  Mayor Brandt thanked the Zoning Board members in attendance for their 

service. 
 
  Mr. Bryan Hersh, Zoning Board member stated the first iteration to change 

the code was very exclusive, would put many existing homes in non-
compliance, and did not see a trend of negative impact to neighborhood 
character. Trustee Hancock asked the Zoning Board members if they would 
want to see a large home built next to their homes. Mr. Hersh stated no, 
but with the proposed text amendments, a large percentage of houses will 
have stringent caps put in place. A conversation ensued regarding potential 
issues with existing homes versus future residential development, FAR 
across the residential zoning districts, square footage of lot size, maximum 
home size, and what the code currently regulates.   

 
  Trustee Grujanac noted concern for her neighborhood regarding the 

teardowns and rebuilds dwarfing the original homes and changing the 
original character of the neighborhood.  

 
  Mayor Brandt noted concern with the larger houses affecting sunlight, 

setbacks, three and four car garages, square footage, impact on the 
schools, and potential additions. Mayor Brandt stated these are the 
changes that came up for consideration by the Village Board.   

 
  Mr. Brian Bichkoff, Zoning Board Chair, noted at one of the Zoning Board 

meetings, Lincolnshire bulk regulations was compared to neighboring 
communities and was found comparable. If more restrictions are put in 
place, this affects building and land values in Lincolnshire. Mr. Bichkoff 
stated there was limited public turnout at the four Zoning Board meetings 
where this matter was discussed.  

 
  Trustee Hancock asked Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson 

how many homes would be non-conforming as a result of the proposed 
changes. Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated there 
are currently three legally non-conforming and another 12 within 0.23 - 
0.25 FAR that could be impacted with these potential new requirements.  

 
  Mayor Brandt thanked everyone for their input and noted there does not 

have to be a vote taken tonight. 
 
  Village Attorney Simon stated a rule could be made for existing homes in 

the R3 district where there might be potential for home additions to 
approach the square footage maximum versus a brand new home. Trustee 
Grujanac noted she thought this was in interesting idea.  

 



Page 6 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
 

  Mr. Gary Kalina, Zoning Board member, stated the biggest concerns of the 
Zoning Board are current residents and turning away future residents 
because of overly-restrictive zoning regulations. Mr. Hersh stated they are 
not opposed to putting in regulations to prevent huge homes.  

 
  A conversation regarding square footage caps followed. Assistant Village 

Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated square footage caps do not include 
the garage square foot credit.  

 
  Trustee Grujanac stated she would like to hear from Village Attorney Simon 

on how existing homeowners in R3 could improve their homes but also 
putting in place regulations for teardowns/rebuilds. Trustee Grujanac noted 
she would be in favor of going back to the original 5,000 square foot cap if 
a new home was being built. Trustee Hancock stated his opinion is that 
there would still need to be a square footage cap on the existing homes. 
Trustee Grujanac suggested putting something in place for the existing 
homes where only a certain percent of the home could be modified. 
Assistant Village Manager/CED Director Gilbertson stated the only 
regulation he was aware of currently is the FAR. Village Attorney Simon 
recommended the Board not create the specific language for the rule in 
this context. If the Board wants to give the direction on what the formula 
is, the Zoning Board could make a recommendation to the Village Board.  

 
  Mayor Brandt asked if they could change how square footage is calculated 

to include the garage. Village Manager Burke stated staff could reevaluate 
the garage credit.  

  
  It was the consensus of the Board to direct staff to research reasonable 

allowances for existing homes and reevaluate the garage credit.   
 
8.2 Finance and Administration  
8.3 Public Works 
8.4 Police 
8.5 Parks and Recreation 
8.6 Judiciary and Personnel 

 
  9.0 REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES - None 
 
10.0  UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None 
 
11.0 NEW BUSINESS - None 

 
12.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION - None 

 
13.0 ADJOURNMENT 

 
 Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Hancock seconded the motion to adjourn. The 

voice vote was unanimous and Mayor Brandt declared the meeting adjourned at 7:59 
p.m. 

  
  



Page 7 
MINUTES – Regular Village Board Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 
 
 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 
 Village Clerk 



 
 
 
 

O n e  O l d e  H a l f  D a y  R o a d  
L i n c o l n s h i r e ,  I L  6 0 0 6 9  
www. l i n co l n sh i re i l . g ov  

 
7.2 

MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 

Monday, November 25, 2019   
Present: 
Mayor Brandt      Trustee Harms Muth 
Trustee Grujanac    Trustee Hancock 
Trustee Leider    Trustee Pantelis 
Trustee Raizin     Village Clerk Mastandrea    
Village Attorney Simon   Village Manager Burke 
Treasurer/Finance Director Peterson   Public Works Director Woodbury 
Chief of Police Leonas   Assistant Village Manager/Community & 
Planning & Development Manager Zozulya  Economic Development Director Gilbertson        

        
1.0 ROLL CALL 

Mayor Brandt called the meeting to order at 8:02 p.m., and Village Clerk Mastandrea 
called the Roll. 

 
2.0 ITEMS OF GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
 2.1 Planning, Zoning and Land Use 

2.11 Consideration of an Ordinance Granting a Special Use and 
 Variances for a Public School – Daniel Wright Middle School 

(School District #103) 
 
 Planning & Development Manager Zozulya provided background and a 

summary of the proposed ordinance granting a special use and 
variances for Daniel Wright Middle School.  

 
 On November 12, 2019, the Zoning Board held public hearings for the 

request, and unanimously recommended approval. Although School 
District (SD) 103 applied for parking variations that would allow them 
to keep the parking lot in its current state, they expressed a 
willingness to bring the parking lot up to code at a future date. Given 
SD 103’s offer, the Zoning Board added this condition to their 
recommendation to the Village Board. Staff recommends the Board 
request SD 103 withdraw their parking lot variation request prior to 
the December 9 Village Board meeting to allow non-compliant parking 
lot improvements to be reclassified from variations to legally non-
conforming structures. Planning & Development Manager Zozulya 
noted such a change would mandate SD 103 bring the parking lot into 
compliance when they make any change to the parking areas in the 
future.  

 
 Planning & Development Manager Zozulya stated a resident came into 

the Village Hall as a result of the Public Hearing notice to find out 



Page 2 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 

about the scope of the project and several residents came to the 
Zoning Board meeting with various drainage concerns. SD 103 
consultants were able to address the drainage concerns.  

 
 On November 19, 2019, the Architectural Review Board (ARB) held a 

design review and unanimously recommended approval with a 
condition to consider incorporating additional landscaping into the 
plans to create an enhanced outdoor environment for students.  

 
 The petitioner indicated they agree to meet the Zoning Board and ARB 

conditions. 
 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval with the request to SD 103 to withdraw their 
parking lot variation request prior to the December 9 Village Board 
meeting to allow non-compliant parking lot improvements to be 
reclassified from variations to legally non-conforming structures.  

 
2.12 Preliminary Evaluation of a Request for a Major Amendment to 

the Tri-State Planned Unit Development to Revise a 
Comprehensive Sign Package for the 200 Tri-State 
International Office Building (Bradford Allen Realty Service - 
200 Tri-State International Office Building)  

 
 Planning & Development Manager Zozulya provided a summary of a 

preliminary evaluation of a request for a major amendment to the Tri-
State planned unit development (PUD) to revise a comprehensive sign 
package for 200 Tri-State International office building. Current and 
proposed sign dimensions are included in the packet.  

 
 If the Board is comfortable with this request, it would be referred to 

the Architectural Review Board (ARB) for review of the PUD sizes and 
individual Amerimark signage, then come back to the Village Board for 
a Public Hearing.  

 
 Mayor Brandt asked if the property across Half Day Road would be a 

PUD as well. Planning & Development Manager Zozulya confirmed the 
property across Half Day Road would be a PUD. Mayor Brandt stated 
this would then provide guidance for the review of the redevelopment 
of the former Medline site. 

 
 Ms. Amy Morrissey, representing Amerimark provided a presentation 

regarding Amerimark and a preliminary evaluation of a request for a 
major amendment to the Tri-State PUD to revise a comprehensive sign 
package for 200 Tri-State International office building. 

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to refer this to the Architectural 

Review Board.  
 
2.13 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending the Lincolnshire 

Village Code, Title 6 (Zoning), Chapters 2 (Zoning Definitions), 



Page 3 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 

3 (General Zoning Regulations), and 8 (Office/Industrial 
Districts), Defining and Prohibiting Adult-Use Cannabis 
Business Establishments (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Assistant Village Manager/Community & Economic Development (CED) 

Director Gilbertson provided a background and summary of a proposed 
Ordinance Amending the Lincolnshire Village Code, Title 6 (Zoning), 
Chapters 2 (Zoning Definitions), 3 (General Zoning Regulations), and 8 
(Office/Industrial Districts), Defining and Prohibiting Adult-Use 
Cannabis Business Establishments. The Zoning Board echoed some of 
the concerns the Village Board had regarding timing and date the law 
would come into effect.   

     
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

2.2 Finance and Administration 
 

2.3 Public Works 
2.4 Public Safety 

2.41  Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 11 
(Misdemeanors), Chapter 10 (Offenses Affecting Public Health 
and Safety) of the Lincolnshire Village Code Pertaining to 
Recreational Cannabis (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Chief of Police Leonas provided a summary of an ordinance amending 

Title 11 (Misdemeanors), Chapter 10 (Offenses Affecting Public Health 
and Safety) of the Lincolnshire Village Code Pertaining to Recreational 
Cannabis which is a result of the state law changing January 1, 2020. 

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

2.42 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 11 
(Misdemeanors), Chapter 12 (Minors) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
 Chief of Police Leonas provided a summary of an ordinance amending 

Title 11 (Misdemeanors), Chapter 12 (Minors) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code which is a result of the state law changing January 1, 
2020. This is also a cleanup of the current code.  

 
 It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 

 2.43 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 3 (Business 
License Regulations), Chapter 4 (Amusements), Article G 
(Raffles) of the Lincolnshire Village Code (Village of 
Lincolnshire) 

 
  Chief of Police Leonas provided a summary of an ordinance amending 



Page 4 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 

Title 3 (Business License Regulations), Chapter 4 (Amusements), 
Article G (Raffles) of the Lincolnshire Village Code which is a result of a 
state law change relative to raffles and poker runs.   

 
  It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 
 2.44 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 4 (Health and 

Sanitation), Chapter 4 (Smoking Regulations), of the 
Lincolnshire Village Code Pertaining to Smoking on School 
Grounds (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
  Chief of Police Leonas provided a summary of an ordinance amending 

Title 4 (Health and Sanitation), Chapter 4 (Smoking Regulations), of 
the Lincolnshire Village Code pertaining to smoking on school grounds 
which was brought to the attention of staff from the Catalyst Group. 

 
  It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
 
 2.45 Consideration of an Ordinance Amending Title 1 

(Administration), Chapter 17 (Comprehensive Fine/Penalty 
Schedule), Section 12 (Misdemeanors) of the Lincolnshire 
Village Code (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
  Chief of Police Leonas provided a summary of an ordinance amending 

Title 1 (Administration), Chapter 17 (Comprehensive Fine/Penalty 
Schedule), Section 12 (Misdemeanors) of the Lincolnshire Village Code 
which is a follow up to the above-mentioned ordinance to address 
fines.  

 
  Trustee Grujanac noted a typo in a one of the listed fines for 

correction.  
 
  It was the consensus of the Board to place this item on the Consent 

Agenda for approval at the next Regular Village Board Meeting. 
  

2.5 Public Safety 
2.6 Parks and Recreation 
2.7 Judiciary and Personnel 

  
3.0  UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
4.0  NEW BUSINESS  

4.1 Architectural Review Board Report Regarding The St. James Place 
 
  Trustee Hancock updated the Board regarding The St. James Place 

presentation to the Architectural Review Board (ARB). The petitioner 
presented architectural drawings, placement of the building, and parking 
locations. Trustee Hancock encouraged the Board and residents to review the 
ARB packet and/or watch the meeting online. Some feedback presented 



Page 5 
MINUTES – Committee of the Whole Meeting 
November 25, 2019 
 
 

included possibly marking the proposed building footprint on the site to see 
where the building would be situated. Trustee Hancock suggested putting 
balloons up at the highest point and flying the drone. Trustee Hancock noted 
it was a high quality proposal.  

 
  Planning & Development Manager Zozulya stated the petitioner is aiming to 

come back before the ARB on December 16 as long as they can address all of 
the comments from the ARB, staff, and Trustee Hancock. Courtesy notices 
were sent out to interested individuals prior to the ARB meeting and 
notifications will continue to be sent.  

 
  Village Manager Burke stated approximately 9 residents were in attendance 

but also Kelley Morrissey, representative of the Tri-State International 
buildings, who has an interest regarding traffic and other aspects of the 
project.  

 
  Planning & Development Manager Zozulya noted staff debriefed with the 

applicant, and they are appreciative of the dialog between the ARB and staff. 
They are interested in getting everything addressed before they come back.  

 
  Trustee Grujanac suggested putting up a crane the height of the building 

instead of a moving balloon.  
 
  Trustee Hancock stated there was a question regarding traffic within the site 

that they may need to address with a study.  
 
  Trustee Harms Muth asked if the size of the building had changed from what 

was originally presented. Planning & Development Manager Zozulya stated it 
is approximately the same size as has been presented in the past; 450,000 
square feet.  

 
  Trustee Raizin asked if signage would be on Route 22 or the tollway. Village 

Manager Burke stated a wall sign is proposed along the tollway side and a 
monument sign on Route 22. 

    
5.0  EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
6.0  ADJOURNMENT 

 
Trustee Grujanac moved and Trustee Harms Muth seconded the motion to adjourn. 
Upon a voice vote, the motion was approved unanimously and Mayor Brandt declared 
the meeting adjourned at 8:40 p.m. 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 
 

 
 
 Barbara Mastandrea 

 Village Clerk 



 

Agenda Item 

7.3 & 7.4 RVB 

 

 
V:\Property_File\RIVWO-
RD\1370\PLANNING\2019Addition\12_09_19_RVB\2019_12_09_RVB_DanielWright_BldgAddition_SpecialUse_Varia
nce_FeeWaiver.doc 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Regular Village Board  

December 9, 2019 

 

Subject:  Daniel Wright Junior High School - 1370 Riverwoods Road – 

Building Addition 

  

Action Requested: 7.3 Approval of an Ordinance Granting a Special Use and 

Variances for a Public School – Daniel Wright Junior High 

School  

 

7.4 Approval of an Internal Village Fee Waiver not to exceed 

$4,264.33 

 

Petitioner:  Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103  

 

Originated By/Contact: Tonya Zozulya, Planning & Development Manager  

 

Referred to: Village Board 

 

  

Item 7.3 - Special Use & Variances 

 At the November 25, 2019, Committee of the Whole meeting, the Village Board 

requested Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 (petitioner) withdraw their 

parking-related variances to achieve parking lot compliance during the next parking 

improvement project. The parking-related variances will be classified as legally non-

conforming structures which would require the petitioner to bring the parking lot into 

compliance with Village Code during any future improvements to the parking lot (e.g., 

re-striping or re-surfacing). Subsequently, the petitioner submitted a letter requesting 

the withdrawal (see attached Document 1). The draft ordinance also reflects the 

amended request (see attached Document 2).  

 

Recommendation 

Approval of the draft ordinance. 

 

Item 7.4 - Internal Village Fee Waiver 

 The petitioner submitted a letter (see attached Document 3) requesting a waiver of all 

internal Village fees associated with the building addition fees.  

 

 Section 5-3-2A of the Village Code regarding not-for-profit fees allows the Village Board 

to waive internal Village fees (up to $5,000 per development/project) for charitable 

organizations, defined as “any not-for-profit corporation, association, or foundation 

organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, testing for public 

safety, literary, educational, and/or cruelty to children or animals purposes” (see 

attached Document 5). Out-of-pocket costs for outside consultant reviews or 

inspections, including applicable attorney's fees, are not eligible to be waived and are 

applied to the petitioner’s escrow account.  

 



Agenda Item 

7.3 & 7.4 RVB 

V:\Property_File\RIVWO-
RD\1370\PLANNING\2019Addition\12_09_19_RVB\2019_12_09_RVB_DanielWright_BldgAddition_SpecialUse_Varia
nce_FeeWaiver.doc 

 Based on the code requirements and the W-9 form provided by the petitioner (see

attached Document 4), the petitioner is eligible for an internal Village fee waiver. If

approved, the fee waiver will be applied to the following internal Village fees:

Special Use Fee 

Variance Fee

Architectural Review Board Fee (Major Review) 

Planning Review Fee (7 hours @ $79.19 overhead rate) 

Engineering/Sign Permit Review Fee (estimated)

$500.00 

$250.00 

$500.00 

$554.33 

$2,460.00 

TOTAL FEE WAIVER $4,264.33 

 The Village Board has previously waived internal Village fees for other Lincolnshire-

Prairie View School District 103 projects, as well as Adlai E. Stevenson High School

District 125, Vernon Area Library District, Vernon Township, and the Lincolnshire-

Riverwoods Fire Protection District.

Recommendation 

Approval of the fee waiver. 

Reports and Documents Attached 

 Document 1: Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 parking variance withdrawal

letter, dated December 2, 2019.

 Document 2: Draft Special Use and variance ordinance, prepared by the Village

Attorney.

 Document 3: Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 fee waiver letter dated

December 2, 2019.

 Document 4: Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 W-9 form.

 Document 5: Village Code Section 5-3-2A.

Meeting History 

Committee of the Whole – 

Preliminary Evaluation 
November 11, 2019 

Zoning Board – 

Public Hearings 
November 12, 2019 

Architectural Review Board November 19, 2019 

Committee of the Whole – 

First Reading 
November 25, 2019 

Regular Village Board – 

Second Reading 
December 9, 2019 



 

 

December 2, 2019 
 

Elizabeth Brandt, Mayor 
Village of Lincolnshire 

One Olde Half Day Road 
Lincolnshire, Illinois 60069 

 
Re: Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 
 Daniel Wright Jr. High School Addition & Renovations 
 Withdrawal of Requested Variations 
 Commission No. 193050 
 
Dear Mayor Brandt and Members of the Village Board: 
 
On behalf of Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103, we wish to thank the Village of 
Lincolnshire for its consideration of the Special Use and Variation requests related to the proposed 
Daniel Wright Jr. High School Addition & Renovations project. 
 
Based on the feedback received from the Village Board, Zoning Board and Architectural Review 
Board; we are formally requesting that the following parking lot variations which had been applied 
for be withdrawn so these items can be reclassified as legally non-conforming structures and 
brought into compliance when parking lot improvements are made: 
 

1. Section 6-11-2(B)(3) - allow parking stalls to be located in the required 50’ front yard 
setbacks; 

2. Section 6-11-2 (C) - allow a reduction in the minimum required length of a parking stall 
from 19’ and to allow parking drive aisles to be less than 9.5’ in width; 

 
All other variations being sought by the School District will remain intact to be considered for 
inclusion in the final ordinance. 
 
Thank you again for your partnership. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Wold Architects and Engineers 
 

 
Matt Bickel | AIA, LEED AP 
Partner 
 
cc: Dr. Scott Warren, LPV 103 
 Scott Gaunky, LPV 103 
 Dan Kritta, Wold 
 
KH/O:/SD/Lincolnshire-Prairie View?193050/crsp/dec19 
 

tzozulya
Typewritten Text
Document 1



VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING  

A SPECIAL USE AND VARIANCES FOR A PUBLIC SCHOOL 
(LINCOLNSHIRE-PRAIRIE VIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT 103 – DANIEL WRIGHT 

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL) 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Lincolnshire is an Illinois home rule municipality 
operating under the Constitution and Laws of the State of Illinois;  

WHEREAS, the Illinois Supreme Court has affirmed that Illinois home rule 
municipalities may apply and enforce zoning and storm water ordinances on school 
district property, Gurba v. Community High School District No. 155, 2015 IL 118332;  

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board convened a public hearing on November 12, 2019, 
notice of which was published in the Daily Herald on October 29, 2019, on an application 
from Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 (“Applicant”) as owner of the property 
commonly known as Daniel Wright Junior High School at 1370 Riverwood Road, 
Lincolnshire, Illinois (P.I.N. 15-11-400-027) and legally described on Exhibit A (the 
“Subject Property”), for a special use permit to ratify operation of a public school with 
zoning variances, and to permit a proposed building addition (“Special Use Application”); 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid public hearing was held pursuant to legal notice as 
required by law and all persons desiring an opportunity to be heard were given such 
opportunity at said public hearing;  

WHEREAS, the Subject Property has been used for school operations since 1972;  

WHEREAS, the school was annexed to the Village of Lincolnshire in 1989; 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board has heretofore submitted to the Mayor and Board 
of Trustees its findings of fact and recommendations related to the Special Use 
Application;  

WHEREAS, the Architectural Review Board held a public meeting on November 
19, 2019, to review the Site and Building Design Plans for the Subject Property; 

WHEREAS, the aforesaid public meeting was held pursuant to legal notice as 
required by law and all persons desiring an opportunity to be heard were given such 
opportunity;  

WHEREAS, the Architectural Review Board has heretofore submitted to the 
Mayor and Board of Trustees its findings of fact and recommendations related to the Site 
and Building Design Plans for the Subject Property; 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have concluded that the Special Use 
Application, subject to and in conformance with the terms and conditions of this 
Ordinance, will be beneficial to the Village, will further the development of the Subject 

tzozulya
Typewritten Text
Document 2



Property, and will otherwise enhance and promote the general welfare of the Village and 
the health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Village.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Board of Trustees 
of the Village of Lincolnshire, in exercise of its home rule authority, as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals and Findings.  

A. The Mayor and Board of Trustees hereby confirm the truth and validity of 
the representations set forth in the foregoing recitals, acknowledge they are material to 
this Ordinance, and incorporate and make them a part of this Ordinance as though fully 
set forth herein. The Mayor and Board of Trustees further intend that this Ordinance shall 
be liberally construed so that the purpose and intent represented by the recitals shall be 
accomplished to the greatest extent permitted by law. 

B. The Mayor and Board of Trustees have duly considered the 
recommendations of the Zoning Board and Architectural Review Board and hereby adopt 
the findings of the Zoning Board and Architectural Review Board, attached as Exhibits B-
1 and B-2, as the findings of the Corporate Authorities the same as though fully restated 
herein.  All references and findings of the Zoning Board and Architectural Review Board 
are hereby made the findings and references of the Mayor and Board of Trustees. 

Section 2.  Special Use.  Subject to compliance with the conditions described in 
Section 3, the Applicant is hereby granted a special use permit to (i) ratify the operation of 
the existing public school on the Subject Property, (ii) grant approval of the building 
additions described in Exhibit C, and (iii) grant the following variances to permit the use 
and operation of the public school on the Subject Property: 

A. Section 6-3-5(A)(6) - permit more than two accessory structures on the 
subject lot; 

B. Section 6-3-5(B) - allow accessory structures to exceed the maximum 5’ 
separation from the rear of the principal structure, be constructed from a material 
different than the principal building, and not have landscape screening; 

C. Section 6-15-3(A)(1)(c) - allow a yard fence taller than 8’ which separates 
residential properties from a non-compatible land use;  

D. Section 6-15-3(C)(2)(c)(i) - allow ground-mounted equipment to be 
unscreened.  

E. Section 13-2-4(C)(5)(b)  - allow no continuous 8’ landscape planting area 
between the building and parking areas.   

Section 3.  Conditions of Approval.  The authority granted by this Ordinance 
and the issuance of the special use permit is hereby conditioned on the Applicant’s strict 
compliance with the plans and conditions described below: 

A. The parking lot shall be brought into compliance when future parking 
improvements are implemented.  



B. Any nonconforming conditions existing on the Property for which a variance is 
not herein granted, including but not limited to the parking lot and light poles, shall be 
subject to the application of Title 6, Chapter 13 of the Village Code; 

C. All construction work on the Subject Property shall comply with Section 5-1-11 
of the Lincolnshire Village Code; and 

D. Village of Lincolnshire Final Evaluation Packet, prepared for the 
Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 Daniel Wright Junior High School Addition 
and renovations by Wold Architects and Engineers, dated November 20, 2019 and 
comprised of the following plans and exhibits:  cover letter, site plans, landscape plans, 
existing conditions photos, architectural renderings, sign plans, building elevations, 
exterior equipment/screening plan; floor plan; civil engineering plans; photometric 
lighting plan; operations/conditions exhibit; Lake County Stormwater Management 
Commission correspondence and Lake County Division of Transportation 
correspondence.   

 Section 4.  Superseding Effect. The specific terms and conditions of this 
Ordinance shall prevail against other existing ordinances of the Village to the extent of any 
conflicts. Except for the foregoing limitation, the development of the Subject Property 
remains subject to compliance with the Lake County Watershed Development Ordinance. 

Section 5. Penalties. Any person violating the terms and conditions of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to a penalty not exceeding Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per 
offense, with each and every day that the violation of the Ordinance is allowed to remain 
in effect being deemed a complete and separate offense. In addition, the appropriate 
authorities of the Village may take such other action as they deem proper to enforce the 
terms and conditions of this Ordinance, including, without limitation, an action in equity 
to compel compliance with its terms. Any person violating the terms of this Ordinance 
shall be subject, in addition to the foregoing penalties, to the payment of court costs and 
reasonable attorneys' fees. This section shall not apply to the Village of Lincolnshire, its 
officials, agents or employees. 

Section 6. Enforcement. The Subject Property shall be made available for 
inspection by any department of the Village at all reasonable times for compliance with 
this Ordinance and any other applicable laws or regulations. 

Section 7. Effective Date; Assent. This Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect from and after its passage, approval and publication in pamphlet form as provided 
by law, provided, however, that this Ordinance shall not take effect until a true and correct 
copy of this Ordinance is executed by the Applicant, or such other parties in interest as the 
Village may reasonably identify, consenting to and agreeing to be bound by the terms and 
conditions of this Ordinance. Delivery to the Village of a copy of this Ordinance, as so 
executed, shall take place not later than sixty (60) days after the passage and approval of 
this Ordinance by the Corporate Authorities or within such extension of time as may be 
granted by the Corporate Authorities by motion. 

Section 8.  Consents.  By signing the acknowledgement and accepting the terms 
and conditions of this Ordinance, the Applicant knowingly and voluntarily waives, for 
itself and its successors and assigns, any and all claims against the Village, its elected and 
appointed officers, employees and agents, of whatever kind, nature and amount, resulting 
from the limitations on the use of the Subject Property applied by Sections 2 and 3 of this 



Ordinance.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Ordinance shall be deemed to 
waive the ability for the Applicant, or its successors and assigns, to petition the Village, 
from time to time, for other and further zoning and subdivision approvals.   

PASSED this ____ day of  ____________________, 2019, by the Corporate 
Authorities of the Village of Lincolnshire on a roll call vote as follows: 

AYES:  

NAYS:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

APPROVED this ____th day of ________________________, 2019. 

 
 
 
      -
____________________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Village Clerk 
 
 
Published by me in pamphlet form  

this ____ day of _______________, 2019. 

 



ACCEPTED: 
 
APPLICANT: 
 
LINCOLNSHIRE-PRAIRIE VIEW SCHOOL DISTRICT 103 
 
 
By: ________________________ 

Name: ________________________ 

Its: ________________________ 

Date of Execution:________________ 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS. 
COUNTY OF ___________ ) 
 
I, the undersigned, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that 
_______________________, who is the ________________ of Lincolnshire-
Prairie View School District 103, (“Applicant”), and who is personally known to me 
to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing Ordinance, appeared 
before me this day in person and acknowledged that he signed and delivered said 
Ordinance as his own free and voluntary act on behalf of the Owner, for the uses and 
purposes therein set forth.   
 
GIVEN under my hand and Notarial Seal, this _____ day of _________________ 
2016. 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 
 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 
 



GROUP EXHIBIT B 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 
B-1  FINDINGS OF THE ZONING BOARD 
 
B-2  FINDINGS OF THE ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
 

 
 



EXHIBIT C 
 

SITE AND BUILDING DESIGN PLANS FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 

Administration Offices 
1370 Riverwoods Road • Lincolnshire, Il  60069 

847/295-4030 •  FAX 847/295-9196 
http://www.d103.org 

 
 
 

December 2, 2019 
 
Mayor Brandt and Village Board of Trustees 
Village of Lincolnshire 
One Olde Half Day Road 
Lincolnshire, IL 60069 
 
Dear Mayor Brandt and Village Board of Trustees, 
 
I am requesting a waiver of the Village of all internal fees associated with the building addition of 1800 sq.ft. and 
classroom renovation of Daniel Wright Jr. High. 
 
Lincolnshire-Prairie View School District 103 qualifies under the State of Illinois as a non-profit organization and 
holds a tax-exempt status. The Village has received a copy of the District’s W-9 as requested. 

 
Thank you for your attention to this request. I look forward to working with the Village on this important 
project for our community. Feel free to contact me with any questions at swarren@d103.org or the number 
above. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Scott Warren 

Scott H. Warren, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 

 
 

tzozulya
Typewritten Text
Document 3



Form    W-9
(Rev. August 2013)
Department of the Treasury  
Internal Revenue Service 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the  

requester. Do not 

send to the IRS.

P
ri

n
t 

o
r 

ty
p

e
 

S
ee

 S
p

e
c

if
ic

 I
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
s
 o

n 
p

ag
e 

2.

Name (as shown on your income tax return)

Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

Check appropriate box for federal tax classification: 

Individual/sole proprietor  C Corporation S Corporation Partnership Trust/estate

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnership)  

Other (see instructions) 

Exemptions (see instructions):

Exempt payee code (if any)

Exemption from FATCA reporting
 code (if any)

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)

City, state, and ZIP code

Requester’s name and address (optional)

List account number(s) here (optional)

Part I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on the “Name” line 
to avoid backup withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other 
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a 
TIN on page 3.

Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose 
number to enter.

Social security number

– –

Employer identification number 

–

Part II Certification

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and

2. I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am
no longer subject to backup withholding, and

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below), and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding 
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage 
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and 
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the 
instructions on page 3.

Sign 
Here

Signature of 

U.S. person Date 

General Instructions
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments. The IRS has created a page on IRS.gov for information 
about Form W-9, at www.irs.gov/w9. Information about any future developments 
affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) will be posted 
on that page.

Purpose of Form

A person who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your 
correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) to report, for example, income paid to 
you, payments made to you in settlement of payment card and third party network 
transactions, real estate transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or 
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or contributions you made 
to an IRA.

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to 
provide your correct TIN to the person requesting it (the requester) and, when 
applicable, to:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number 
to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If 
applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of 
any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the 

withholding tax on foreign partners’ share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are 
exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct.

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form 
W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is substantially 
similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. 
person if you are:

• An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,

• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the 
United States or under the laws of the United States,

• An estate (other than a foreign estate), or

• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in 
the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 
1446 on any foreign partners’ share of effectively connected taxable income from 
such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, 
the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a 
foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a 
U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the 
United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status 
and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

Cat. No. 10231X Form W-9 (Rev. 8-2013)

LINCOLNSHIRE-PRAIRIE VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 103

✔ SCHOOL

3

C

1370 N. RIVERWOODS ROAD

LINCOLNSHIRE, IL 60069

3 6 6 0 0 4 8 8 3

9/25/2019

Document 4



 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 5-3: BUILDING FEES AND CHARGES 
Revised 11/11/2019 Page 1 

 

      CHAPTER 3 

         BUILDING FEES AND CHARGES 

 

SECTION: 
 

5-3-1: Fees for Permits 

5-3-2: Reimbursement of Professional Review Fees 

5-3-2A: Not-For-Profit Fees 

5-3-3: Additional Fees 

5-3-4: Water and Sewer Connection Charges 

5-3-4-1: Connection Charges Outside Corporate Limits 
 
 

5-3-1:  FEES FOR PERMITS: The fee for a building permit to construct, alter or repair 
any building or other structure or its service equipment in the Village shall be 
as established in the Comprehensive Fee Schedule set forth in Chapter 15 of 
Title 1 of this Code (Ord. Amd. 96-1467-51, eff. 12/9/96). 

 
A. Applicants for a building permit shall submit the estimated construction cost of 

the proposed improvements. The Building Official shall use the most recent 
copy of the International Building Code building valuation data report on file for 
verifying any estimates. The Building Official may request a verified statement 
of actual costs upon completion of the work. In the event the actual cost 
exceeds the estimate, an additional fee based upon such actual costs in 
accordance with this Section shall be paid. 

 

5-3-2: REIMBURSEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL REVIEW FEES: Except as 
otherwise provided for in this Chapter, applicants for a building permit shall be 
required to remain in compliance with Title 1, Chapter 8, Article D, as a 
condition of receiving a building permit (Amd. Ord. 07-2981-09, eff. 4/23/07). 

 

5-3-2A:  NOT FOR PROFIT FEES (Ord. 94-1345-29, eff. 7/11/94) 
 
A. Any local government serving all or any part of the Village, or any charitable 

organization, may file an application with the Village for a waiver of fees 
imposed by the Village, excluding out-of-pocket Village expenses. The 
application for waiver of fees shall be in writing and shall contain all the 
information necessary to determine the applicant’s eligibility under this 
Ordinance and identify the fees and amounts which the applicant is requesting 
to be waived. The Board of Trustees shall review the application, satisfy itself 
of the sufficiency of the application and eligibility of the applicant, and formally 
approve or disapprove the application at a regular meeting of the Village Board 
of Trustees as part of the Consent Agenda, unless otherwise pulled for 

tzozulya
Typewritten Text
Document 5



 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE  TITLE 5-3: BUILDING FEES AND CHARGES 
Revised 11/11/2019 Page 2 

consideration under Items of General Business per Section 1-5-3-5-8 of the 
Lincolnshire Village Code. Applications shall be filed with the Community & 
Economic Development Department at least 14 (14) days before the date of 
the scheduled meeting at which the application is to be considered initially. 

 
There shall be no waiver of fees in excess of $5,000 per development or 
project. 

 

B. DEFINITIONS 

 

CHARITABLE  

ORGANIZATION 

Any not-for-profit corporation, association, or foundation 
organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, 
scientific, testing for public safety, literary, educational, 
and/or cruelty to children or animals purposes. For the 
purposes of this ordinance, homeowners associations do 
not qualify as charitable organizations and may not seek fee 
waivers. 
 

FEES  Fees that would otherwise be required for, or incurred in 
connection with, planning, zoning, and building applications 
and permits in regard to construction, restoration, replacement, 
renovation, remodeling, addition, or repair of a structure, but 
not including sewer and water connection fees and fees or 
charges recovering direct out-of-pocket Village expenses. 
 

OUT-OF-POCKET 

VILLAGE EXPENSES 

Shall mean any costs incurred by the Village for outside 
services of independent contractors related to the processing 
of any agreements, petitions, or permits, including, but not 
limited to, postage, legal fees, costs of legal notices, and the 
cost of any inspections or analysis required by the Village from 
outside consultants. 

 

5-3-3: ADDITIONAL FEES:  
 
A. Lake County Sanitary Sewer Fee: Applicants for connection to, or modification 

of, the Village sanitary sewer system shall pay connection fees as required by 
the County of Lake. The Village Engineer shall collect such fee on behalf of 
the County and transfer such funds to the County on a schedule in accordance 
with the requirements of the County. 

 
B. Outside Agency & Consultant Fees: Applicants for Building Permits shall 

reimburse the Village for all costs incurred by contracted or specialized 
reviewers necessary to ensure that the application, design, plans, and 
specifications meet the requirements of the Village. The Village reserves the 

tzozulya
Line



 

Agenda Item 
8.31 RVB 

 
  

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Regular Village Board Meeting 

December 9, 2019 
 

Subject: 2020 Roadway and Parking Lot Rehabilitation 
 
Action Requested: 

 
Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Baxter & Woodman 
Consulting Engineers for Roadway and Parking Lot Rehabilitation, 
Design, Permits, and Bidding Services at a Cost not to Exceed 
$77,166.27. (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
Originated 
By/Contact: 

 
Wally Dittrich, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

Summary / Background:   
Staff issued a Request for Qualifications in February 2019 for consulting engineering 
services to design and oversee the construction of the 2019/2020 Road Rehabilitation 
Programs. Staff received proposals from eight (8) consultants. After a thorough internal 
review, staff negotiated a contract with Baxter & Woodman Consulting Engineers for the 
design of the project. Staff felt Baxter & Woodman Consulting Engineers submitted the 
strongest proposal based on their experience with similar work in other villages, their 
understanding of the project, as well as experience in evaluating road programs for other 
municipalities.  Additionally, Baxter & Woodman successfully completed the design and 
construction management for the Village’s 2019 road resurfacing program. 

The scope of work for this contract includes preparing bidding documents for the resurfacing 
of Brampton Road (east and west of Riverwoods), Stafford Court, Farrington Road and 
Farrington Circle, as well as resurfacing the parking lots at North Park and the Public Works 
Facility. 

The scope for this year’s contract also includes assisting the Village with evaluating and 
prioritizing the roadways for future Street Resurfacing Programs.  This information will be 
presented to the board in February of 2020. 

 
Budget Impact: 
There is currently $100,000 in the 2020 budget for professional services related the design 
work. 
 
Service Delivery Impact: 
No Change 
 
Recommendation:  
Approval of a contract with Baxter & Woodman Consulting Engineers as a cost not to exceed 
$77,166.27.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

• 2020 Pavement Rehabilitation Agreement 
• Location Map 
•  

Meeting History 
Regular Village Board Meeting December 9, 2019 
 



Printed 11/27/2019 Page 1 of 4 BLR 05510 (Rev. 11/06) 

C 
O 
N 
S 
U 
L 
T 
A 
N 

T 

L 
O 
C 
A  
L 
 
A 
G 
E 
N 
C 

Y 

Preliminary Engineering 
Services Agreement 

For 

Motor Fuel Tax Funds 

Municipality 

Village of Lincolnshire 

  

 

 Name 

Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 

Township  Address 

      8678 Ridgefield Road 

County City 

Lake Crystal Lake 

  

Section State 

      IL 
  

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this       day of       , 2019 between the above Local 

Agency (LA) and Consultant (ENGINEER) and covers certain professional engineering services in connection with the 
improvement of the above SECTION.  Motor Fuel Tax Funds, allotted to the LA by the State of Illinois under the general 
supervision of the State Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “DEPARTMENT”, will be used entirely or in part 
to finance ENGINEERING services as described under AGREEMENT PROVISIONS. 

 

Section Description 

 
Name 2020 Pavement Rehabilitation – Design Engineering 

            
Route Various Length       Mi.       FT  (Structure No.       ) 

           

Termini See Exhibit B 

 

Description: 

Project consists of street resurfacing, curb repairs, minor drainage improvements, parking lot resurfacing, driveway repairs, 
and other misc. work. (Engineer's Project No. 191496.40 

 Agreement Provisions 

The Engineer Agrees, 
 

1. To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following engineering services for the LA, in connection with the 
 proposed improvements herein before described, and checked below: 
 

 a.   Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed roadway plans 
 

 b.   Make stream and flood plain hydraulic surveys and gather high water data, and flood histories for the preparation 
  of detailed bridge plans. 
 

 c.   Make or cause to be made such soil surveys or subsurface investigations including borings and soil profiles and 
  analyses thereof as may be required to furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement.   
  Such investigations are to be made in accordance with the current requirements of the DEPARTMENT. 
 

 d.   Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and special intersection studies as may be required to 
  furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement. 
 

 e.   Prepare Army Corps of Engineers Permit, Department of Natural Resources-Office of Water Resources Permit,  
  Bridge waterway sketch, and/or Channel Change sketch, Utility plan and locations, and Railroad Crossing work 
  agreements. 
 

 f.    Prepare Preliminary Bridge design and Hydraulic Report, (including economic analysis of bridge or culvert types) 
  and high water effects on roadway overflows and bridge approaches. 
 

 g.   Make complete general and detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates of cost and furnish the LA 
  with five (5) copies of the plans, special provisions, proposals and estimates.  Additional copies of any or all  
  documents, if required, shall be furnished to the LA by the ENGINEER at his actual cost for reproduction. 
 

 h.   Furnish the LA with survey and drafts in quadruplicate of all necessary right-of-way dedications, construction  
  easement and borrow pit and channel change agreements including prints of the corresponding plats and staking 
  as required. 

 

Note:  Four copies to be submitted to the Regional Engineer   



Printed 11/27/2019 Page 2 of 4 BLR 05510 (Rev. 11/06) 

 i.    Assist the LA in the tabulation and interpretation of the contractors’ proposals 
 

 j.    Prepare the necessary environmental documents in accordance with the procedures adopted by the   
  DEPARTMENT’s Bureau of Local Roads & Streets. 
 

 k.   Prepare the Project Development Report when required by the DEPARTMENT. 
 
(2) That all reports, plans, plats and special provisions to be furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to the AGREEMENT, will 
 be in accordance with current standard specifications and policies of the DEPARTMENT.  It is being understood that all 
 such reports, plats, plans and drafts shall, before being finally accepted, be subject to approval by the LA and the 
 DEPARTMENT. 
 
(3) To attend conferences at any reasonable time when requested to do so by representatives of the LA or the Department. 
 
(4) In the event plans or surveys are found to be in error during construction of the SECTION and revisions of the plans or 
 survey corrections are necessary, the ENGINEER agrees that he will perform such work without expense to the LA, even 
 though final payment has been received by him.  He shall give immediate attention to these changes so there will be a 
 minimum delay to the Contractor. 
 
(5) That basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computations and other data prepared or obtained by the Engineer 
 pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be made available, upon request, to the LA or the DEPARTMENT without cost and 
 without restriction or limitations as to their use. 
 
(6) That all plans and other documents furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be endorsed by him 
 and will show his professional seal where such is required by law. 
 
The LA Agrees, 
 
1. To pay the ENGINEER as compensation for all services performed as stipulated in paragraphs 1a, 1g, 1i, 2, 3, 5 and 6 in 
 accordance with one of the following methods indicated by a check mark: 
 

 a.   A sum of money equal to       percent of the awarded contract cost of the proposed improvement as  

  approved by the DEPARTMENT. 
 

 b.   A sum of money equal to the percent of the awarded contract cost for the proposed improvement as approved by 
  the DEPARTMENT based on the following schedule: 

 
Schedule for Percentages Based on Awarded Contract Cost 

 

  Awarded Cost Percentage Fees 
 Under $50,000   Cost plus fixed fee not to (see note) 

 Exceed $77,166.27 % 

 (See Exhibit A) % 

       % 

       % 

       % 

 
   Note:    Not necessarily a percentage.  Could use per diem, cost-plus or lump sum. 
 
2. To pay for services stipulated in paragraphs 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 1f, 1h, 1j & 1k of the ENGINEER AGREES at actual cost of 

 performing such work plus 145 percent to cover profit, overhead and readiness to serve - “actual cost” being defined 

 as material cost plus payrolls, insurance, social security and retirement deductions.  Traveling and other out-of-pocket 
 expenses will be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost.  Subject to the approval of the LA, the ENGINEER may 
 sublet all or part of the services provided under the paragraph 1b, 1c, 1d, 1e, 1f, 1h, 1j & 1k.  If the ENGINEER sublets all 
 or part of this work, the LA will pay the cost to the ENGINEER plus a five (5) percent service charge. 
 

 “Cost to Engineer” to be verified by furnishing the LA and the DEPARTMENT copies of invoices from the party doing the 
 work.  The classifications of the employees used in the work should be consistent with the employee classifications for 
 the services performed.  If the personnel of the firm, including the Principal Engineer, perform routine services that 
 should normally be performed by lesser-salaried personnel, the wage rate billed for such services shall be 
 commensurate with the work performed. 



Printed 11/27/2019 Page 3 of 4 BLR 05510 (Rev. 11/06) 

3. That payments due the ENGINEER for services rendered in accordance with this AGREEMENT will be made as soon as 
 practicable after the services have been performed in accordance with the following schedule: 
 
 a. Upon completion of detailed plans, special provisions, proposals and estimate of cost - being the work required by 
  paragraphs 1a through 1g under THE ENGINEER AGREES - to the satisfaction of the LA and their approval by the 
  DEPARTMENT, 90 percent of the total fee due under this AGREEMENT based on the approved estimate of cost. 
 
 b. Upon award of the contract for the improvement by the LA and its approval by the DEPARTMENT, 100 percent of 
  the total fee due under the AGREEMENT based on the awarded contract cost, less any amounts paid under “a”  
  above. 
 
 By Mutual agreement, partial payments, not to exceed 90 percent of the amount earned, may be made from time to time 
 as the work progresses. 
 
4. That, should the improvement be abandoned at any time after the ENGINEER has performed any part of the services 
 provided for in paragraphs 1a, through 1h and prior to the completion of such services, the LA shall reimburse the 
 ENGINEER for his actual costs plus 145  

  

percent incurred up to the time he is notified in writing of such 

 abandonment -“actual cost” being defined as in paragraph 2 of THE LA AGREES. 
 
5. That, should the LA require changes in any of the detailed plans, specifications or estimates except for those required 
 pursuant to paragraph 4 of THE ENGINEER AGREEs, after they have been approved by the DEPARTMENT, the LA will  
 pay the ENGINEER for such changes on the basis of actual cost plus 145    percent to cover profit, overhead and 

 readiness to serve -“actual cost” being defined as in paragraph 2 of THE LA AGREES.  It is understood that “changes” as 
 used in this paragraph shall in no way relieve the ENGINEER of his responsibility to prepare a complete and adequate 
 set of plans and specifications. 
 

 
It is Mutually Agreed, 
 
1. That any difference between the ENGINEER and the LA concerning their interpretation of the provisions of this 
 Agreement shall be referred to a committee of disinterested parties consisting of one member appointed by the 
 ENGINEER, one member appointed by the LA and a third member appointed by the two other members for disposition 
 and that the committee’s decision shall be final. 
 
2. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by the LA upon giving notice in writing to the ENGINEER at his last known post 
 office address.  Upon such termination, the ENGINEER shall cause to be delivered to the LA all surveys, permits, 
 agreements, preliminary bridge design & hydraulic report, drawings, specifications, partial and completed estimates and 
 data, if any from traffic studies and soil survey and subsurface investigations with the understanding that all such 
 material becomes the property of the LA.  The ENGINEER shall be paid for any services completed and any services 
 partially completed in accordance with Section 4 of THE LA AGREES. 
 
3. That if the contract for construction has not been awarded one year after the acceptance of the plans by the LA and their 
 approval by the DEPARTMENT, the LA will pay the ENGINEER the balance of the engineering fee due to make 100 
 percent of the total fees due under this AGREEMENT, based on the estimate of cost as prepared by the ENGINEER and 
 approved by the LA and the DEPARTMENT. 
 
4. That the ENGINEER warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide 
 employee working solely for the ENGINEER, to solicit or secure this contract, and that he/she has not paid or agreed to 
 pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the ENGINEER, any fee, commission, 
 percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this 
 contract.  For Breach or violation of this warranty the LA shall have the right to annul this contract without liability. 

 
  



Printed 11/27/2019 Page 4 of 4 BLR 05510 (Rev. 11/06) 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the AGREEMENT to be executed in quadruplicate counterparts, each of 
which shall be considered as an original by their duly authorized officers. 

 

 

Executed by the LA: 

 

 Village of Lincolnshire of the 

 (Municipality/Township/County) 

 
ATTEST: State of Illinois, acting by and through its 

 

By    

 
 Clerk  By  

 
  (Seal) Title  

 
 

 
 

Executed by the ENGINEER: Baxter & Woodman, Inc. 

 
 8678 Ridgefield Road 

 
ATTEST: Crystal Lake, IL 60012 

 
By   By  

 
Title Deputy Secretary  Title Vice President 

 
 

 

 

 
 
  Approved  

   

   

 Date  
 Department of Transportation  

   

   

 Regional Engineer  



Exhibit A - Preliminary Engineering

PAYROLL ESCALATION TABLE

FIXED RAISES

FIRM NAME Baxter & Woodman, Inc. DATE 11/27/19

PRIME/SUPPLEMENT PRIME 0.00 PTB NO. N/A

 

CONTRACT TERM 6 MONTHS OVERHEAD RATE 146.37%

START DATE 12/1/2019 COMPLEXITY FACTOR

RAISE DATE 1/1/2020 % OF RAISE 3.00%

ESCALATION PER YEAR

12/1/2019 - 1/1/2020 1/2/2020 - 6/1/2020          

1 5    

6 6    

= 16.67% 85.83%    

= 1.0250

The total escalation for this project would be: 2.50%

I:\Crystal Lake\LINCV\191496-2020 MFT Street Impr\Contracts\2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019.xls Printed 11/27/2019 9:09 AM



Exhibit A - Preliminary Engineering

Subconsultants
FIRM NAME Baxter & Woodman, Inc. DATE 11/27/19

PRIME/SUPPLEMENT PRIME

PSB NO. N/A

NAME Direct Labor Total Contribution to Prime Consultant

Soil Material Consultants 4,460.00 446.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Total 4,460.00 446.00

I:\Crystal Lake\LINCV\191496-2020 MFT Street Impr\Contracts\2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019.xlsPrinted 11/27/2019 9:09 AM



Exhibit A - Preliminary Engineering

2020 Pavement Rehabilitation Program

Exhibit A

Route: Various *Firm's approved rates on file with

Local Agency: Village of Lincolnshire Bureau of Accounting and Auditing:

(Municipality)

Section: Overhead Rate 146.37%

Project: Complexity Factor 0.00

Job No.: Calendar

Method of Compensation:

Cost Plus Fixed Fee 1 14.5%[DL + R(DL) + OH(DL) + IHDC]

Cost Plus Fixed Fee 2 14.5%[DL + R(DL) + 1.4(DL) + IHDC]

Cost Plus Fixed Fee 3 14.5%[(2.3 + R)DL + IHDC]

Specific Rate

Lump Sum

Cost Estimate of Consultant’s Services in Dollars

SERVICES IN-HOUSE

ELEMENT OF WORK EMPLOYEE MANHOURS PAYROLL PAYROLL OVERHEAD BY DIRECT PROFIT TOTAL

CLASS. RATE COSTS (DL) OTHERS COSTS

Early Coordination and Data Collection 140 6,441.92 9,429.04 2,301.29 18,172.25

Geotechnical Report 6 214.92 314.58 4,460.00 147.90 98.22 5,235.62

Plan Preparation 246 9,482.58 13,879.66 24.80 3,391.12 26,778.16

Meetings 42 1,890.20 2,766.69 162.40 698.80 5,518.09

QA/QC 8 482.00 705.50 172.19 1,359.68

Assist Bidding See 16 See 681.75 997.87 35.20 248.65 1,963.47

Future Road Program Plan Payroll 122 Payroll 5,557.82 8,134.98 1,985.45 15,678.24

Manage Project Rates 16 Rates 872.32 1,276.81 311.62 2,460.74

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

TOTALS 596 25,623.50 37,505.12 4,460.00 370.30 9,207.34 77,166.27

IN-HOUSE DIRECT COSTS (INCLUDED IN TOTAL COST): SERVICES BY OTHERS (INCLUDED IN TOTAL COST):

VEHICLE EXPENSES - TRAVEL, 580 MI @ $0.535/MILE $310.30 Soil and Material Consultants $4,460.00

GPS SURVEY

POSTAGE $60.00

TRAFFIC COUNTERS
I:\Crystal Lake\LINCV\191496-2020 MFT Street Impr\Contracts\2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019.xls Printed 11/27/2019 9:09 AM



Exhibit A - Preliminary Engineering

AVERAGE HOURLY PROJECT RATES

FIRM Baxter & Woodman, Inc.

PSB N/A DATE 11/27/19

PRIME/SUPPLEMENT PRIME

SHEET 1 OF 2

PAYROLL AVG TOTAL PROJECT RATES

HOURLY Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd

CLASSIFICATION RATES Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg

Executive Vice President 80.79 0             

Vice President 70.21 0             

Engineer V 65.98 30 5.03% 3.32 24 17.14% 11.31       4 50.00% 32.99

Engineer IV 54.52 124 20.81% 11.34 8 5.71% 3.12   20 8.13% 4.43 20 47.62% 25.96 4 50.00% 27.26

Engineer III 46.06 70 11.74% 5.41 24 17.14% 7.90 2 33.33% 15.35 40 16.26% 7.49 4 9.52% 4.39   

Engineer II 37.59 0             

Engineer I 30.70 170 28.52% 8.76 16 11.43% 3.51 4 66.67% 20.47 106 43.09% 13.23 12 28.57% 8.77   

Environmental Scientist V 55.88 0             

Environmental Scientist IV 43.05 0             

Engineer Tech V 52.23 0             

Engineer Tech IV 46.37 24 4.03% 1.87 24 17.14% 7.95         

Engineer Tech III 36.59 0             

Engineer Tech II 26.74 0             

GIS Manager 56.50 0             

GIS Coordinator 44.16 40 6.71% 2.96 8 5.71% 2.52         

GIS Specialist 35.22 0             

GIS Tech 32.67 0             

Survey Manager 36.86 0             

Project Surveyor 35.01 20 3.36% 1.17 20 14.29% 5.00         

CADD Technician III 47.55 0             

CADD Technician II 41.19 118 19.80% 8.16 16 11.43% 4.71   80 32.52% 13.40 6 14.29% 5.88   

Administrative Support II 28.54 0             

Administrative Support I 19.76 0             

  0             

  0             

  0             

  0             

TOTALS 596 100% $42.99 140 100.00% $46.01 6 100% $35.82 246 100% $38.55 42 100% $45.00 8 100% $60.25

Early Coordination and Data 

Collection
Geotechnical Report Plan Preparation Meetings QA/QC

I:\Crystal Lake\LINCV\191496-2020 MFT Street Impr\Contracts\2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019.xls Printed 11/27/2019 9:09 AM



Exhibit A - Preliminary Engineering

'

AVERAGE HOURLY PROJECT RATES

FIRM Baxter & Woodman, Inc.

PSB N/A DATE 11/27/19

PRIME/SUPPLEMENT PRIME

SHEET 2 OF 2

PAYROLL AVG

HOURLY Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd Hours % Wgtd

CLASSIFICATION RATES Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg Part. Avg

Executive Vice President 80.79             

Vice President 70.21             

Engineer V 65.98   2 1.64% 1.08         

Engineer IV 54.52 8 50.00% 27.26 48 39.34% 21.45 16 100.00% 54.52       

Engineer III 46.06             

Engineer II 37.59             

Engineer I 30.70 8 50.00% 15.35 24 19.67% 6.04         

Environmental Scientist V 55.88             

Environmental Scientist IV 43.05             

Engineer Tech V 52.23             

Engineer Tech IV 46.37             

Engineer Tech III 36.59             

Engineer Tech II 26.74             

GIS Manager 56.50             

GIS Coordinator 44.16   32 26.23% 11.58         

GIS Specialist 35.22             

GIS Tech 32.67             

Survey Manager 36.86             

Project Surveyor 35.01             

CADD Technician III 47.55             

CADD Technician II 41.19   16 13.11% 5.40         

Administrative Support II 28.54             

Administrative Support I 19.76             

              

              

              

              

TOTALS 16 100% $42.61 122 100% $45.56 16 100% $54.52 0 0% $0.00 0 0% $0.00 0 0% $0.00

Assist Bidding Future Road Program Plan Manage Project       

I:\Crystal Lake\LINCV\191496-2020 MFT Street Impr\Contracts\2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019.xls Printed 11/27/2019 9:09 AM



Exhibit A - Preliminary Engineering

PAYROLL RATES
FIRM NAME Baxter & Woodman, Inc.DATE 11/27/19

PRIME/SUPPLEMENT PRIME

PSB NO. N/A

ESCALATION FACTOR 2.50%

CLASSIFICATION CURRENT RATE CALCULATED RATE

Executive Vice President $78.82 $80.79

Vice President $68.50 $70.21

Engineer V $64.37 $65.98

Engineer IV $53.19 $54.52

Engineer III $44.94 $46.06

Engineer II $36.67 $37.59

Engineer I $29.95 $30.70

Environmental Scientist V $54.52 $55.88

Environmental Scientist IV $42.00 $43.05

Engineer Tech V $50.96 $52.23

Engineer Tech IV $45.24 $46.37

Engineer Tech III $35.70 $36.59

Engineer Tech II $26.09 $26.74

GIS Manager $55.12 $56.50

GIS Coordinator $43.08 $44.16

GIS Specialist $34.36 $35.22

GIS Tech $31.87 $32.67

Survey Manager $35.96 $36.86

Project Surveyor $34.16 $35.01

CADD Technician III $46.39 $47.55

CADD Technician II $40.19 $41.19

Administrative Support III $31.64 $32.43

Administrative Support II $27.84 $28.54

Administrative Support I $19.28 $19.76

$0.00

I:\Crystal Lake\LINCV\191496-2020 MFT Street Impr\Contracts\2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019.xlsPrinted 11/27/2019 9:09 AM



Consultant: Baxter & Woodman 
Local Public Agency: Village of Lincolnshire 

- 1 - 
 

  

2020 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROGRAM  
DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES 

VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 
 

EXHIBIT B 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
 
LOCATION: 
 
The  MFT  resurfacing  project  is  located  at  various  locations  within  the  Village  of  Lincolnshire.  The 
following project locations are included in this project: 
 
Roadway  Limits  Length 
Brampton Ln (West) 
Brampton Ln (East) 
Brampton Ct (East) 
Brampton Ct (West) 
Stafford Ct 
Farrington Circle 
Farrington Drive 
Farrington Drive 
Farrington Drive 
Farrington Drive 
 

Cul De Sac 
Riverwoods Road 
Cul De Sac 
Brampton Ln 
Brampton Ln 
Farrington Drive 
Riverwoods Road 
Farrington Drive 
Farrington Circle 
Farrington Drive 
 

Riverwoods Road 
Cul De Sac 
Brampton Ln 
Cul De Sac 
Cul De Sac 
Cul De Sac 
Farrington Drive 
Farrington Circle 
Farrington Drive 
Cul De Sac 
 

Parking Lot 
North  Park,  1025  Riverwoods  Rd 
Public Works, 205 Schelter Road 

   

     
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 
1.   EARLY COORDINATION AND DATA COLLECTION 
 

 Data Collection: Obtain,  review and evaluate  the  following  information provided by  the Village 
for use in design: 

o Utility Atlases 
o GIS Shape files surrounding the project limits 
o ROW, GIS and property data 
o Storm sewer televising 

 

 Field  evaluation:    Perform  a  field  evaluation  of  the  condition  of  existing  pavements,  drainage 
structures,  sidewalk  ramps,  and  curb  and  gutter.    Estimate quantities of pavement  repair  and 
curb and gutter repair.   

 

 Topographic  Survey:  Topographic  survey  will  not  performed  within  the  scope  of  this  work. 
Schematic  drawings  will  be  developed  from  aerial  photography  and  field  verified  at  select 
locations.  



2020 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROGRAM – DESIGN ENGINEERING 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 

- 2 - 

 

 Supplemental Survey: As approved by the Village, provide topographic survey for areas requiring 
grading of parkway and/or gutter drainage. 

 

 No additional right‐of‐way or easements are anticipated. Work to complete Plat of Easement or 
Plat of Dedication is not included.  
 

 Storm  Sewer  Analysis:    Evaluate  existing  conditions  of  storm  sewer within  the  project  limits.  
Storm Sewer Repair will be evaluated by review of Village provided televised tapes and identified 
areas of failure or blockages. Additional televising of sewers  is not  included  in the scope of this 
work and can be provided for additional fee.  
 

2.   GEOTECHNICAL REPORT 
 

 Pavement Cores and Soil Borings: Utilize Soil and Material Consultants to take pavement cores of 
the surface and base material for determining the composition of the existing pavement material 
and pH samples within  the project  limits. Baxter & Woodman will provide a core  location map 
prior to this work. (14 cores estimated) 
 

 Clean Construction or Demolition Debris (CCDD): The Village will provide a completed IEPA Form 
662.  The  contractor will provide  testing during  construction  to  comply with  Form 663.   CCDD 
testing and completion of Form 663  is not  included  in this scope and the amount of potentially 
contaminated soils will be determined during construction.  

 
3.   PLAN PREPARATION 
 

 Estimate  of  Cost  and  Time:  Prepare  summary  of  quantities,  estimate  of  time,  schedules  of 
materials and an engineer’s estimate of cost. 

 

 Specifications: Prepare special provisions  in accordance with Village guidelines  to specify  items 
not covered by the Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction. 

 

 Final  Schematic  Plans:  Prepare  bidding  documents  consisting  of  plan  view  schematics  (no 
topographic survey), Typical Sections, Special Provisions, Contract Proposal, Schedule of Prices, 
and Engineer’s Estimate of Cost and submit these documents to IDOT for review and approval. 

 

 Utility  Coordination:  Contact  J.U.L.I.E.  to  identify  utilities  that  have  facilities  along  the  project 
limits. Request  utility  atlas maps  and  plot  locations  and  sizes  of  existing  utilities  in  electronic 
drawings.  Submit  preliminary  and  final  plans  to  utility  companies  so  conflicts  and  relocation 
efforts can be  identified. Provide ongoing reviews of permitting and utility relocation efforts as 
requested by the LA. Prepare “Status of Utilities to be Adjusted” special provision in accordance 
with  IDOT District  1  requirements, which  provides  the  contractor with  the  duration  of  utility 
relocation work,  status of utilities  to be watched  and protected within  the project  limits,  and 
pertinent  information for the contractor to develop a work schedule to meet the requirements 
for the project. 

 

 The  following  items are not  included within  the  scope of  this project, but  can be provided as 
additional services to the contract: 

o Environmental Survey Request (no tree removal) 



2020 PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROGRAM – DESIGN ENGINEERING 
VILLAGE OF LINCOLNSHIRE 

- 3 - 

o Lighting 
o Structural 

 
4.   MEETINGS 

 Meetings: The following meetings are anticipated for this project: 
o Village (3 total): Kickoff, Prefinal, Board Meeting 
o IDOT (1 total): Review 

 

 Public Meeting: No public involvement is anticipated for this project. 
 
5.   QA/QC  ‐  Perform  in‐house  peer  and milestone  reviews  by  senior  staff  during  project  initiation, 

conceptual  review,  preliminary,  prefinal,  and  final  submittals.  Provide  ongoing  reviews  of 
permitting  and  utility  coordination  efforts.  Conduct  milestone  reviews  of  subconsultants  and 
provide feedback throughout the progress of work. 

 
6.   ASSIST BIDDING 
 

 Provide design assistance and clarification for bid documents. Assist the Village with coordination 
and scheduling during the bid process.  

 

 Provide documents for bidding and assist the Village in solicitation of bids from as many qualified 
bidders as possible, attend bid opening to receive and evaluate bids, tabulate bids, and make a 
recommendation to the Village for an award of contract. 
 

7.   FUTURE  ROAD  PROGRAM  PLAN  ‐  Pavement  Improvement  Plan:  Utilize  pavement  assessment  data 
supplied  by  the  Village  to  assist  Village  staff  in  developing  the multi‐year  roadway maintenance 
program  by  selecting  the  highest  priority  street  sections whose  total  estimated  cost matches  the 
Village’s  determined  maintenance  budget.    Provide  recommendations  and  exhibits  showing  the 
multi‐year program. 

 
8.   MANAGE PROJECT 
 

 Plan,  schedule,  and  control  the  activities  that  must  be  performed  to  complete  the  project 
including budget, schedule, and scope. Coordinate with Village and project  team  to ensure  the 
goals of the project are achieved. Prepare and submit monthly invoices, coordinate invoices from 
sub‐consultants, and provide regular updates to the Village.  

 

 Deliverables: The following is a list of anticipated final deliverables to the Village for this project: 
o Electronic DGN, Geopak, and Digital Photos used in project development. 
o Electronic  Record  of  Design  files  including  agency  correspondence,  Estimates, 

Exhibits,  and  related  electronic  submittals  (pdf  or  as  appropriate).  Baxter  & 
Woodman utilizes an electronic filing system in lieu of hard copies.   



 

 

2020 Road Resurfacing Program Location Map 



 

Agenda Item 
8.32 RVB 

 
  

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Regular Village Board Meeting 

December 9, 2019 
 

Subject: South Village Green Roadway and Site Improvements 
 
Action Requested: 

 
Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Christopher B. 
Burke Engineering, Ltd. for Roadway Improvement Analysis, Design, 
Permits, and Bidding Services at a Cost not to Exceed $47,650.00 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
Originated 
By/Contact: 

 
Wally Dittrich, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background:   
In 1999, the Village of Lincolnshire worked with a developer to construct the access Road to 
the South Village Green condominiums as part of the Village’s larger effort to re-develop the 
Lincolnshire Downtown area located west of Milwaukee Avenue between Half Day Road and 
Olde Half Day Road with TIF funds. Since the construction of the access road and adjoining 
condominiums, the Village has been involved in various aspects of maintenance of the paver 
brick roadway, median landscaping, irrigation systems, street lighting and winter 
maintenance.  In 2010 and 2014, major projects were undertaken to repair settlement 
caused by a watermain break and also repair a failing retaining wall at the south end of the 
property.  Over the years the paver bricks that make up the access road have been failing 
and staff has spent a significant amount of effort internally and via contractors to constantly 
repair the bricks. 

This area is unique in its ownership as the Village owns half of the access road right of way 
and the other half the Village has a dedicated right-of-way, but no ownership.  Given the 
condition of the roadway, staff proposes hiring a consulting engineering firm to evaluate the 
cause of the roadway failure and develop alternatives for replacing the paver bricks with a 
more stable conventional asphalt roadway.  The project will also consider other areas in 
need of repair such as the parking areas and sidewalks as well as develop a formal survey 
of the entire property which will be utilized to more formally establish areas of maintenance 
responsibility with the Homeowners Association’s (HOA) of the respective condominium 
buildings.  A final recommendation will be brought forward for the boards consideration for 
inclusion in the 2021 budget before actual plan preparation is authorized to proceed. 

Staff recommends entering into an agreement with Christopher B. Burke Engineering as 
they have a significant amount of history with the area including plat/survey work for the 
assembly of all of the properties the Village acquired during the downtown re-development 
process as well as completing design work on previous repair projects for the area.  This 
knowledge will allow for a more streamlined approach to the project given the historical 
information this consultant already has with the area.  The scope of work includes taking 
numerous soil borings through the project area to determine the ground conditions before 
proposing design alternatives, as well as the completion of an ALTA survey to be used in 
establishing maintenance responsibilities. 

Budget Impact: 
There is currently $60,000 in the 2020 budget for the design work for this project.   
 
 



 

Agenda Item 
8.32 RVB 

 
  

Service Delivery Impact: 
No Change 
 
Recommendation:  
Approval of a contract with Christopher B. Burke Engineering, Ltd. as a cost not to exceed 
$47,650.00.  
 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

• Pavement Rehabilitation Agreement 
• Location Map 

 
Meeting History 

Regular Village Board Meeting December 9, 2019 
 



































 

 

South Village Green Location Map 



 

Agenda Item 
8.33 RVB 

 
  

 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Regular Village Board Meeting 

December 9, 2019 
 

Subject: Village Hall Flooring, Tuckpointing, and Security Improvements 
 
Action Requested: 

 
Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Kluber Architects & 
Engineers for Flooring, Tuckpointing, and Security Improvements 
Design, Bidding, and Construction Administration Services at a Cost 
not to Exceed $23,750.00 (Village of Lincolnshire) 

 
Originated 
By/Contact: 

 
Wally Dittrich, P.E., Assistant Public Works Director/Village Engineer 

 
Referred To:  

 
Mayor and Board of Trustees 

 
Summary / Background:   
In 2018, the Village completed a facility assessment of the Village Hall which helped to 
identify and prioritize improvements needed at the Village Hall.  These improvements were 
incorporated into the Village’s 10 Year Capital Improvement Plan so they could be 
adequately budgeted for and coordinated over the course of time.  For 2020, the following 
items were identified and budgeted for: 

• Flooring replacement (police department, downstairs hallways, board room and 
community room – various materials to be considered) 

• Capstone and brick repairs at various walls around Village Hall 

• Village Hall Security Improvements (external and internal) 

 

When the Village selected the preferred consultant for completing the facility assessment, 
part of the selection criteria included the consultant’s ability to also provide design services 
for the improvements being recommended in the plan.  In 2019, Kluber Architects & 
Engineers successfully completed design plans for the soffit repair projects at both Village 
Hall and Public Works, and staff recommends utilizing the same firm to complete the design 
and construction oversight work for this project.  In order to maximize design/bidding 
efficiencies, the project will be put out as one design package which will allow for multiple 
bidders or general contractors to bid for the work more cost effectively.  This will also 
simplify the coordination of completing the work in overlapping areas as the work will be 
under one project as opposed to separate projects. 

As various aspects of the project are designed, stakeholders will be involved in the design 
process and the board will be provided an update on the final design aspects in advance of 
the project being sent out for bid.  

 
Budget Impact: 
The amount budgeted for each respective improvement included allocations for the design 
and construction oversight of the work.   
 
Improvement Type Overall Project Budget Design Budget 
Flooring $120,000 $12,000 
Capstone and Brickwork $95,000 $9,500 
Security Upgrades $80,000 $8,000 



 

Agenda Item 
8.33 RVB 

 
  

   
Total $295,000 $29,500 
 
 
  $29,500 was included in the 2020 budget for the design/construction work for these 

projects.   
 
 
Service Delivery Impact: 
No Change 
 
Recommendation:  
Approval of a contract with Kluber Architects & Engineers as a cost not to exceed 
$23,750.00.  
 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

• Design Agreement 
 
 

Meeting History 
Regular Village Board Meeting December 9, 2019 
 















Agenda Item 
8.34 RVB 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Regular Village Board Meeting 

December 9, 2019 

Subject: Comprehensive Signage Program Updates 

Action Requested: Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Hitchcock Design 
Group of Naperville, Illinois for Preliminary Design for Proposed 
Signage Improvements at a Cost not to Exceed $40,000.00 
(Village of Lincolnshire) 

Originated 
By/Contact: Bradford H. Woodbury, Public Works Director 

Referred To:  Mayor and Board of Trustees 

Summary / Background:   
The existing Village signs, posts and sign frames have become outdated and currently follow 
a design guidebook/plan approved by the Village in 1994.  The approved signage in the 
guidebook are primarily custom designed wood signs, wood posts and metal frames which 
have become dated and are in need of constant updating and repairs. As a result of the 
recently approved brand update, staff proposed to revisit the existing sign guidebook and 
develop consistent and standardized signage which incorporates the new Village logo and 
branding themes. 

The Village’s Street sign frames, street/light posts and entryway/parks signs have presented 
challenges with procurement over the past several years. The streets sign frames have been 
discontinued by the manufacturer and Staff has had to work with a sign company to 
fabricate frames to try and match the original frames. As a result, the frames are being 
fabricated imperfect and inconsistent with regards to sizing. The current street name sign 
posts and street light posts were custom made by a company that has since went out of 
business. These posts require a large amount of maintenance (re-painting, caulking, etc.) 
and have been found to be susceptible to rotting usually lasting less than 5 years. Finally, 
the Village’s current street name signs do not currently meet the FHWA (Federal Highway 
Administration) letter height and/or color requirements. 

Staff issued a Request for Qualifications in September 2019 for consulting services to 
complete Preliminary Design services for all of the Village’s Entryway Signs, Parks Entrance 
Signs, Street Sign Posts, Bike Path Signage, Street Name Signs and Street Sign Frames. 
Staff received proposals from (8) consultants. After a thorough internal review including 
interviews with the top two firms, Staff negotiated a professional services contract with 
Hitchcock Design Group of Naperville, Illinois. Staff felt Hitchcock Design Group submitted 
the strongest proposal based off their submittal, interview and similar design work 
performed in other Village’s including Hinsdale, Lemont, Northfield, Naperville and Oak 
Brook.  

Hitchcock Design Group would begin by analyzing all existing signage and preparing an 
updated Signage Design Program and Analysis Summary. Next, the consultant would 
prepare Schematic Design options for the various Village sign types, and work with Village 
staff to reach consensus on the preferred design options for each type. Additionally, 
Hitchcock would plan to work with staff to potentially conduct surveys and prepare a full-
size mock-up of the primary sign types. Finally, the consultant would conclude with a 



Agenda Item 
8.34 RVB 

summary document outlining the proposed improvements, including preliminary budget 
costs and phasing recommendations.  

It should also be noted that while Hitchcock Design Group would be preparing all of the 
design of the signage program, final design concepts would more than likely require the 
approval of the Park Board, Architectural Review Board and ultimately the Village Board. 

The scope of work for this contract includes preliminary design which would be split into two 
initial parts as detailed below: 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN SERVICES 

A. Research, Analysis and Programming $15,000 Fixed Fee (to be performed in 2019)

B. Schematic Design $25,000 Estimated Fee (to be finalized following completion of the
Research, Analysis and Programming Phase and performed in 2020)

There may be an anticipated Final Design Phase which would include services and fees 
extending beyond 2020 to be negotiated following completion of all Preliminary Design 
services. These services would be included in the 10-Year Capital Improvement Plan.  

Budget Impact: 
There is currently $15,000 in the 2019 budget for the preliminary design work.  Staff is 
requesting a supplemental appropriation amount of $25,000 to be included in the 2020 
budget for preliminary design services for a Comprehensive Signage Program Update.   

Recommendation:  
Staff requests that the Mayor and Board of Trustees waive the first reading of this item, and 
approve the Professional Services Agreement in order to allow the consultant to 
substantially complete the Research, Analysis and Programming design work in 2019.  

Reports and Documents Attached: 
• November 22, 2019 – Hitchcock Design Group Proposal
• November 27, 2019 - Professional Services Agreement

Meeting History 
Regular Village Board Meeting: December 9, 2019 



J:\Marketing\06 Business Development\Lincolnshire, Village of\Comprehensive Signage Program\07 Proposal-Qualifications\Proposal\prop ltr 20191204 lincolnshire signage.docx 

December 4, 2019 

Bradford Woodbury 
Public Works Director 
Village of Lincolnshire 
One Olde Half Day Road 
Lincolnshire, Illinois 60069 

RE: Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 

Dear Mr. Woodbury, 

Thank you for selecting Hitchcock Design Group for the Village of Lincolnshire Comprehensive 
Signage Program Update project. We look forward to getting started and advancing our 
relationship with you and your colleagues at the Village of Lincolnshire. 

Project Understanding 
We understand that the Village of Lincolnshire would like to move forward with the project as 
discussed during the qualifications selection process. Preliminary Design will advance in two 
parts, beginning with the Research, Analysis and Programming phase in 2019, followed by the 
Schematic Design phase in 2020. Final Design Services will be negotiated following completion 
of the Preliminary Design services. 

Project Approach and Scope of Services 
In order to meet your objectives, we propose a process that is summarized below and 
described in greater detail in the attached Approach and Scope of Services. 

We propose to complete Preliminary Design services that begin with analyzing the existing 
signage, jurisdictional requirements, and Village expectations, and we will prepare a Signage 
Design Program and Analysis Summary. Next, we will prepare Schematic Design options for 
the various sign types, and work with Village staff to reach consensus on the preferred design 
to advance. We will assist Village staff with conducting an online Public Survey and prepare a 
full-size mock-up of the primary sign types. We will conclude Schematic Design with a 
summary document outlining the proposed improvements, including preliminary budget costs 
and phasing recommendations. 

Following approval of the Schematic Design, we can determine the most appropriate approach 
to implementing the proposed signs. This may include further documentation to solicit 
competitive pricing from sign fabricators based on the proposed implementation plan. These 
services will be negotiated based on the scope, scale and complexity of the recommended 
improvements.  

Professional Fees 

We will provide the proposed services for the following professional fees: 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN SERVICES 

A. Research, Analysis and Programming $15,000 Fixed Fee
B. Schematic Design $25,000 Fixed Fee (Estimated, to be confirmed 

following completion of Part A) 
Total Fee: $40,000 Fixed Fee 

Customary out-of-pocket expenses such as printing, delivery, and mileage will be invoiced in 
addition to the fixed fee, not-to-exceed $250 for the Research, Analysis and Programming 
phase. 



 
 
December 4, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire - Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 2 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Project Team 
I will be our project manager and will be directly responsible for routine project communications 
with you and the rest of the project team. Mike Wood will be our project designer and will be 
supported by other members of our Naperville Studio as needed in order to advance the work 
in a timely manner. 
 
Authorization and Schedule 
We can begin this work with your authorization and will finalize a schedule with you as we 
begin the Research, Analysis and Programming phase.  
 
Thank you again for the opportunity to work with the Village of Lincolnshire. If you have any 
questions or wish to discuss this proposal further, please do not hesitate to call. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
Hitchcock Design Group 
 
 
 
 
Tim King, PLA, ASLA 
Principal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Encl: Approach 
 Scope of Services  
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Approach 
 
 
Understanding  
The Village of Lincolnshire is an established community characterized by low density, high 
quality housing surrounded by open space. The Village recently developed a new logo that 
reflects this community image.  
 
The existing Village signs date back to 1994, which are primarily custom designed wood signs, 
that appropriately represent the Village image, but have become dated and need repair. The 
Village would like to develop a consistent family of signage, more standardized with easy to 
procure materials, that incorporates the new Village logo, with a consistent design and color 
theme. 
 
Village Brand and Image 
The Village of Lincolnshire recently updated the logo and it will be important to incorporate it 
into the new signage design where appropriate. Throughout the design process we will confirm 
the use of the logo, materials and colors, along with the specific messages to be included on 
the various signs, to consistently represent the community image.   
 
Locations and Context 
The signage design must take into consideration the context within the various locations, 
relationship to existing adjacent land uses, specific site conditions, and the requirements of the 
regulatory agencies with jurisdiction. There will likely be more flexibility with the design of signs 
located within Village jurisdiction, while signs located within IDOT controlled right-of-way must 
conform to the IDOT Special Town Naming policy, Community Wayfinding Sign policy, along 
with other safety and technical requirements. 
 
Design Approach and Process  
Our approach to signage design is comprehensive and we recognize the value of collaboration 
with Village and stakeholder representatives to reach the best recommendations. We will 
explore a variety of design options, taking all factors into consideration. If the signs are more 
standardized, how can they be designed to represent the unique character of the Village? How 
large should the signs be?  What materials are most appropriate and at what cost?  Should 
there be lighting, landscape, and other site improvements at the sign locations?  These 
questions will be answered during the collaborative design process, with the ultimate solution 
being a family of signs that clearly represent the community image, utilizing quality materials 
that will be attractive, durable and timeless.  
 
The Scope of Services outlined in our proposal represents a time-tested process that we have 
used on many comparable projects in similar communities.  However, we welcome the 
opportunity to meet with Village representatives to customize the scope of services to meet the 
specific needs of the project.   
 
 



 
December 4, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 1 

 
 

 
Scope of Services 
 
Preliminary Design 
The goal for this part of the engagement is to finalize the program and reach consensus on a 
preliminary design for the proposed signage improvements and outline an implementation 
strategy moving forward. 
 
A. Research, Analysis and Programming 
Objective:  Confirm the characteristics of the existing resources, jurisdictional requirements, 
Village and stakeholder interests, and produce a program and analysis summary that will be 
the basis for further design. 

 
Process:  Hitchcock Design Group will: 

1. (Mtg #1) Conduct a kick-off meeting with Village staff confirming: 
a. Goals, objectives and approach 
b. Sign types and locations 
c. Jurisdictional requirements 
d. Budgeted costs and potential revenue sources 
e. Consultant and client responsibilities 
f. Communications protocol and decision making 
g. Schedule 
h. Invoicing and payment 
i. Other administrative considerations 
 

2. Inventory available existing data for the project area and the immediate surroundings 
including: 
a. Existing sign inventory provided by the Village 
b. Aerial photography and GIS information  
c. Existing Village logo, branding standards and marketing materials 
d. Pending improvement plans 
e. Jurisdictional regulations and procedures (Village, County, IDOT) 
f. Existing signs, including sign type, size, location and message 
g. Traffic, bicycle and pedestrian circulation routes 
h. Village owned properties and facilities 
 

3. Observe and photograph the project area and immediate surroundings, in order to 
identify readily apparent physical conditions and patterns of use. 

 
4. Evaluate the appropriateness of the existing signage design (type, size, scale, 

message, readability, location).  
 
5. Prepare a Signage Design Program and Analysis Summary that outlines the goals 

and objectives, location and evaluation of existing signs, anticipated signage types, and 
design parameters to advance.   
 

6. (Mtg #2) Review the Program and Analysis Summary with Village staff. 
 
Deliverables:  Signage Design Program and Analysis Summary 
 
 
 
 
 



 
December 4, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 2 
 
B. Schematic Design (Preliminary for Review – to be finalized following completion of 

the Research, Analysis and Programming Phase) 
Objective:  Reach consensus on the type, location, organization, scale, character and potential 
cost of specific sign improvements, and summarize the recommendations. 

 
Process:  Following approval of the Program and Analysis Summary, Hitchcock Design Group 
will: 

1. Prepare Alternative Signage Concepts, including color plans, elevations, 3-D 
sketches and photo examples, illustrating the size, style, materials, colors and text of 
the various sign types including: 
a. Village Entry Signs 
b. Park Entrance Signs 
c. Corporate Center Entry Signs 
d. Village Kiosk Sign 
e. Primary/Secondary Street Sign Posts 
f. Bike Path Signage 
g. Village Street Name Signs 
h. Village Street Sign Frames 
i. Secondary Street Signs 
j. Village Parcel Signage 

 
2. Prepare an overall Diagrammatic Signage Location Plan indicating recommended 

locations within the Village for each of the sign types. 
 

3. Prepare a Preliminary Construction Cost Opinion including each sign type. 
 

4. (Mtg #3) Meet with Village staff to review the alternative signage concepts and 
supporting information. 
 

5. Coordinate with Village staff who will conduct an online Public Survey of the 
alternative signage concepts to solicit input on the preferred concept (or combination of 
concepts) to advance. 
 

6. Refine the Preferred Signage Concept (or combination of concepts), Location Plan 
and Cost Opinion into one preferred family of signage based on input received. 
 

7. (Mtg #4) Review the preferred signage concept, location plan and costs with Village 
staff and identify implementation priorities and strategies moving forward. 
 

8. Prepare a full-size Signage Mock-Up for each primary sign type to solicit public input.  
 

9. Finalize the recommendations based on input received and prepare an 
Implementation Plan indicating recommended phases, costs, permitting 
requirements, and anticipated schedule.  

 
10. Prepare a concise Signage Master Plan document summarizing the process and 

consensus recommendations. 
 

11. (Mtg #5) Review the Signage Master Plan recommendations with Village staff. 
 

12. Finalize the Signage Master Plan based on input received. 
 

13. Submit the Signage Master Plan to Village staff who will present the recommendations 
to the Park Board, Architectural Review Board, and Village Board as appropriate. 
 

Deliverables:  Alternative Signage Concepts, Diagrammatic Signage Location Plan, 
Preliminary Construction Cost Opinion, Preferred Signage Concept, Signage Mock-Up, 
Implementation Plan, Signage Master Plan  



 
December 4, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 3 
 
 
 
Final Design 
Final Design services including preparation of plans and specifications suitable for competitive 
bidding and construction can be provided following completion of the Preliminary Design phase 
based on the scope, scale, and complexity of the approved preliminary design. 

 
 
General Project Administration 
We will manage the performance of our own work throughout the term of the contract by 
providing the following services: 
 
A. Communications 

1. Schedule, create agendas and summarize the highlights of periodic meetings. 
2. Rehearse, attend and present at public forums identified. 
3. Collect and disseminate communications from other parties. 
4. Periodically inform your representative about our progress. 
 

B. Schedules 
1. Create, periodically update and distribute the project schedule. 
2. Coordinate the activities of our staff. 
 

C. Staffing 
1. Select and assign staff members and/or consultants to appropriate tasks and services. 

 
D. File Maintenance 

1. Establish and maintain appropriate correspondence, financial, drawing and data files. 
2. Maintain appropriate time and expense records. 

 
 
Optional, Additional Services 
Services or meetings not specified in this scope of services will be considered additional 
services.  If circumstances arise during our performance of the outlined services that we 
believe require additional services, we will promptly notify you about the nature, extent and 
probable additional cost of the additional services, and perform only such additional services 
following your written authorization. 
 



 

Professional Service Agreement 
 
This agreement (Agreement) between Hitchcock Design, Inc., an Illinois corporation doing 
business as Hitchcock Design Group (HDG), 22 East Chicago Avenue, Suite 200A, 
Naperville, Illinois  60540 and The Village of Lincolnshire (Client), One Olde Half Day 
Road, Lincolnshire, Illinois 60069 is entered into on December 9, 2019, and includes eight 
parts:  Project Description, Project Team, Scope of Services, Schedule, Compensation and 
Payment, Client Responsibilities, Additional Conditions and Acceptance. 
 
PART ONE:  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The project consists of Preliminary Design Services for the Village of Lincolnshire 
Comprehensive Signage Program Update. 
 
PART TWO:  PROJECT TEAM 
Village of Lincolnshire Representative: Bradford Woodbury, Public Works Director 
Hitchcock Design Group Representative: Tim King, Principal 
 
PART THREE:  BASIC SERVICES 
The attached Scope of Services is made a part of this Agreement. 
 
PART FOUR:  SCHEDULE 
The Research, Analysis and Programming phase will begin upon authorization. The overall 
project schedule will be determined during the Research, Analysis and Programming phase. 
 
PART FIVE:  COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 
Fee Type and Amount 
Client agrees to compensate HDG for the Authorized Scope of Services described in Part 
Three of this Agreement as follows: 
 
PRELIMINARY DESIGN SERVICES 
A. Research, Analysis and Programming $15,000 Fixed Fee 
B. Schematic Design  $25,000 Fixed Fee (Estimated, to be confirmed  
   following completion of Part A)  
 Total Fee: $40,000 Fixed Fee 
 
Authorized Additional Services 
If circumstances arise during HDG’s performance of its Scope of Services that require 
additional services, HDG will notify Client about the nature, extent and probable additional cost 
of the additional services, and perform only such additional services following Client’s written 
authorization. Client agrees to compensate HDG for Authorized Additional Services in addition 
to the fee for the Authorized Scope of Services. 
 
Reimbursable Expenses 
In addition to the fees for the Authorized Scope of Services and Authorized Additional Services, 
Client agrees to compensate HDG for delivery, travel, and reproduction expenses at 115% of 
HDG’s actual cost. Mileage is calculated at the current IRS reimbursable rate. 
 
Standard Rates 
The attached Billing Rates are made a part of this Agreement. 
 
Payment 
Invoices 
Each month, HDG will provide an invoice by email to you and your accounting professional, 
that describes the invoice period, the services rendered, fees and expenses due, payment due 



 
December 9, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 2 
 

date, billing history and other appropriate information. Invoices for fixed fees will describe the 
percentage of the services completed. Invoices for hourly fees will describe the tasks, hours 
and hourly rates for the services completed. 
 
Progress Payments 
Client agrees to promptly review HDG invoices and make full payment for Authorized Scope of 
Services, Authorized Additional Services and Reimbursable Expenses. Payment of each 
invoice is due upon receipt and will be past due if not paid in full within 30 days of the invoice 
date. If Client objects to any portion of the invoice, Client agrees to notify HDG, in writing, within 
7 days of receipt regarding the Client’s objection and pay the undisputed invoice amount in 
accordance with this Agreement. 
 
Interest and Collection Costs 
Client agrees to pay a finance charge of 1½% per month on unpaid account balances that are 
past due. In the event that HDG must retain an attorney to enforce Client’s payment 
obligations, Client agrees to pay HDG’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, regardless of 
whether suit is filed. 
 
PART SIX:  CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
Representation 
Client agrees to designate a representative authorized to act on its behalf. HDG will direct 
communications to Client through its designated representative. Client agrees to communicate 
with HDG’s project manager in a timely manner in order to expediently advance HDG services. 
 
Program Requirements 
Client agrees to provide customary program requirements for the project, including objectives, 
standards and criteria, schedule, process, communications and budget. 
 
Existing Conditions 
Client agrees to provide current information regarding the existing conditions for the project 
area, including:  boundary, legal description, ownership, easements and restrictions; 
topography and benchmark; soils, utilities, hydrology/wetlands, vegetation, land uses, 
archeology, traffic. HDG is entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information 
provided. 
 
Access 
Client agrees to provide HDG and its sub consultants access to the property for observation. 
 
Specialized Consultation 
Client agrees to provide the services of specialized consultants, not identified on the Project 
Team, when they are needed to meet Client’s project program requirements. 
 
Changed Conditions 
Client agrees to promptly notify HDG in writing of any condition, event or circumstance that may 
affect the performance of our services. 
 
Financing 
Client agrees to compensate HDG regardless of Client’s ability to secure loans, mortgages, 
additional equity, grants or other supplementary financing for the project. If requested, Client 
agrees to provide evidence that Client is capable of paying for the services described in this 
Agreement. 
 
 
 



 
December 9, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 3 
 

Permits 
Unless specifically described in HDG’s Basic Services, Client agrees to obtain and pay for all 
necessary permits from authorities with jurisdiction over the Project. 
 
Delay 
Client agrees to comply with Part Six of this Agreement and to render decisions in a timely 
manner so as not to delay the orderly and sequential progress of our services. 
 
Maintenance 
Client agrees that proper project maintenance is required after the project is complete and that 
a lack of or improper maintenance may result in damage to property or persons. Client further 
agrees that HDG is not responsible for the results related to any lack of or improper 
maintenance. 
 
Client Expense 
Client agrees to comply with Part Six of this Agreement at its own expense. 
 
PART SEVEN:  ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS 
Standard of Care 
HDG will perform the Authorized Scope of Services and Authorized Additional Services in 
accordance with generally accepted standards of ordinary and reasonable skill exercised by 
landscape architects and planners at the time and location such services are rendered. 
 
Suspension of Services 
If Client has not paid HDG’s invoice within 90 days of the invoice date, or if Client has an open 
aggregate account balance of more than $10,000 or 25% of our professional fees, whichever is 
less, HDG may suspend services under this Agreement by providing 7 days written notice to 
Client. HDG shall have no liability because of such suspension of services. If either party to this 
Agreement suspends services for more than 30 consecutive days, Client agrees to compensate 
HDG for services performed prior to notice of such suspension, and when the Project is 
resumed, compensate HDG for costs incurred during the interruption and resumption of 
services. Client further agrees to equitably adjust HDG’s schedule and fees for the remaining 
services. 
 
Termination of Services 
Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days written notice should 
the other party fail to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
through no fault of the terminating party. Client may terminate this agreement for its 
convenience and without cause by providing not less than seven days written notice. If Client 
terminates this Agreement for its convenience and without cause, Client agrees to compensate 
HDG for services performed prior to the termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses and 
Authorized Additional services. 
 
Ownership of Documents 
HDG retains the ownership of documents prepared by us as instruments of service. Upon 
payment of outstanding invoices related to this Agreement, Client is granted a non-exclusive, 
non-revocable license to use the documents, or copies of the documents, created during the 
performance of HDG’s services for reference, marketing and operation of the project. However, 
HDG retains the exclusive copyright to the plans, designs and information contained on the 
documents and all other use of the documents is expressly prohibited except when granted, in 
writing, by HDG. Client agrees to defend and hold HDG harmless from any claim arising from 
the alleged damages as a consequence of re-use or unauthorized use of the documents. If 
HDG provides any documents in digital format, at Client’s direction, HDG cannot and does not 



 
December 9, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 4 
 

represent, warrant or take any responsibility for the proper operation, compatibility or use of any 
third party software products or the media on which the documents are transmitted, including 
but not limited to software, memory devices or transmission by electronic mail. 
 
Credit 
Client agrees to give HDG proper credit for its professional services in Client’s official 
communications, published articles, and temporary project identification signage. 
 
Risk Allocation and Indemnity 
HDG is responsible only for the Scope of Services authorized in this Agreement. Client may 
choose to modify HDG’s deliverables at Client’s risk. Client agrees to defend, indemnify and 
hold HDG harmless for damages, which may occur as a result of modifications made to our 
deliverables by others without our authorization, or for damages, which may occur because of 
the improper or negligent work of others. 
 
Client agrees to indemnify and hold HDG harmless for any delay in the performance or 
progress of the project, or for any costs or damages sustained by Client resulting from such 
delay caused by any act or neglect by Client or Client’s representatives, or by any third party 
acting on Client’s behalf, or by changes ordered in the project as a result of any regulatory 
authority, or riot or civil commotion, or by any other cause beyond HDG’s control. In the event 
of such delay, HDG will proceed with due diligence to alleviate the delay and continue the 
performance of its obligations under this contract. Client further agrees to indemnify and hold 
HDG harmless from delays or losses experienced by Client or others resulting from the 
discovery of concealed conditions, which require additional professional services, disposal, 
mitigation, or other remedial action. Client also agrees to indemnify and hold HDG harmless 
from delays or losses experienced by Client or others, which result from the discovery of 
hazardous wastes, and contaminants or pollutants, which require remedial design, mitigation, 
or other remedial action. When such discovery warrants the need for additional professional 
services by HDG, those services will be considered additional services. 
 
HDG agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Client against damages, liabilities or costs, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by the negligent 
performance of HDG and its sub consultants. 
 
Limitation of Liability 
Client agrees to limit any claim made against HDG to the amount of compensation actually paid 
to HDG under this Agreement. This limitation of liability applies to all claims including, breach of 
contract, torts or any other theory. 
 
Insurance 
HDG maintains General Liability, Worker's Compensation, Automobile Liability and 
Professional Liability Insurance at all times. Certificates of Insurance are available on request. 
 
Waiver of Subrogation 
Both parties to this Agreement waive the right of subrogation for damages covered by property 
insurance. 
 
Quantity and Cost Opinion 
HDG has no control over the cost of labor, materials, and equipment or the services of others. 
HDG provides quantity summaries and opinions of probable cost based on its professional 
judgment, familiarity with the construction industry, and on recent, comparable bidding results. 
Consequently, HDG does not guarantee the accuracy or thoroughness of its quantity 
summaries or opinions of probable cost. HDG approximates certain quantities and/or costs for 



 
December 9, 2019 
Village of Lincolnshire – Comprehensive Signage Program Update 
Page 5 
 

Client’s convenience. The Contractor is responsible for determining actual quantities and 
providing sufficient labor, services, equipment, and materials to complete the work as drawn 
and specified. 
 
Third Party Approvals 
HDG will work diligently to help Client secure approvals from the appropriate regulatory 
authorities related to the services specified in this Agreement. However, HDG cannot 
guarantee the approval of the project by any regulatory agency or third party. Client agrees to 
compensate HDG for our professional services regardless of the outcome of Client’s 
applications for approval by others. 
 
Dispute Resolution 
Both parties agree to submit disputes arising out of this Agreement or relating to the services 
outlined in the Agreement to non-binding mediation with a mutually agreed upon mediator 
before initiating any litigation. Demand for mediation shall be made by written request to the 
other party. A party shall make a demand for mediation within a reasonable time after a claim 
or dispute arises, and both parties agree to mediate in good faith. Mediation fees shall be 
shared equally.  
 
In the event that mediation does not resolve the dispute(s) within 90 days of demand, either 
party may pursue its rights through litigation in a court of appropriate jurisdiction. In any 
proceeding following unsuccessful mediation, the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled 
as part of any money judgment, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a 
reasonable sum for reimbursement of attorneys’ fees and costs. 
 
Choice of Law 
This Agreement is governed by the laws of the County of DuPage and the State of Illinois. 
 
Authorization 
If HDG is authorized to commence and/or continue providing services, either orally or in writing, 
prior to the execution of this Agreement, such authorization will be deemed an acceptance of 
this Agreement. If so authorized, Client agrees to compensate HDG for such services in 
accordance with these terms and conditions as though this Agreement were fully executed by 
both parties. 
 
Extent 
This contract constitutes the entire agreement between HDG and Client. It supersedes all 
previous written or oral understandings. It can be supplemented, or amended, only by the 
execution of a new written agreement. 
 
PART EIGHT:  ACCEPTANCE  
Please sign and return this Agreement. A countersigned agreement will be returned to you. 
 
 
 
Accepted:   

Authorized Village of Lincolnshire Representative 
 
 
 
Accepted:   

Timothy C. King, Principal 
Hitchcock Design Group 



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Standard Billing Rates and Expenses   

 
 

Effective April 22, 2019 
 
 
Billing Rates 
 

Senior Principal $265 
  
Principal  $195 
  
Senior Associate   
 

$150 
  
Associate $125 
  
Junior Associate $105 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Expenses  
 
In addition to our standard hourly rates, we invoice qualified sub-consultant fees, travel and 
reproduction expenses at 115% of our cost.  We will invoice mileage in personal or company-owned 
cars at 115% of the current IRS reimbursement rate. 
 


	1.0 Agenda
	4.1_2019_12_09_Bills
	Prelist_APBankTrf.xlsx
	CustomInvoiceReport

	7.1 11-25-2019 RVB Minutes
	7.2 11-25-2019 COW Minutes
	7.3_7.4_2019_12_09_RVB_DanielWright_BldgAddition_SpecialUse_Variance_FeeWaiver
	8.31_2019_12_09_RVB_2020_Road_PkgLot_Resurfacing_Design
	2019_12_09_RVB_2020_Road_PkgLot_Resurfacing_Design
	2019_12_09_2020_Road_Resurfacing_PHII_Eng_Agmt
	01-2020 Design BLR 05510_Revised
	02-2020 Design_Template_BLRS_CostPlus_ExhibitA12-22-2019_Revised
	03-2020 Design Scope

	2019_12_09_2020_Road_Resurfacing_Map

	8.32_2019_12_09_RVB_SVG_Design_Survey
	2019_12_09_RVB_SVG_Design_Survey
	2019_12_09_2020_SVG_Contract
	2019_12_09_2020_SVG_Map

	8.33_2019_12_09_RVB_VH_Improvement_Design
	2019_12_09_RVB_VH_Improvement_Design
	2019_12_09_Village_Hall_Improvements_Agreement

	8.34_2019_12_09_RVB_Hitchcock_Lincolnshire_Signage

	Return to Agenda: 


